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CHAIRMAN’S ADDRESS

AT THE FIFTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING HELD ON 23R° AUGUST, 2022

Dear Shareholders,

At the outset, please accept my sincere wishes for the good health and safety of you and your
loved ones. | am delighted to welcome you all at the Fifth (5") Annual General Meeting of Ircon
Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited (IrconDHHL) and present the Audited Statements for the
Financial year 2021-22. | would like to thank each one of you for making it convenient for

joining this meeting.

| would like to place before you, few highlights of Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
(IrconDHHL).

IrconDHHL, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited (IRCON), incorporated
as a Special Purpose Vehicle (‘SPV’) on 11" May 2017, for executing the project work of “Six
- laning of Davanagere-Haveri from Km 260+000 to Km 338+923 of NH-48 (old NH-4) in the
State of Karnataka in accordance with the terms of the Concession Agreement, executed with
the National Highways Authority of India (NHAI). The concession period of the project
comprises of construction period of 912 days (30 months) commencing from the Appointed

Date and operation and maintenance period of 15 years commencing from Commercial



Operation Date (COD), with the total project bid cost is 1177 Crore plus escalation excluding
Operation & Maintenance (O&M) cost.

During the year, w.e.f. 28" May, 2021, the Project has got Provisional Completion Certificate
(PCC) for project length of 72 km and accordingly, the project has entered into O&M phase.
The remaining balance length of 6.88 km of Main Carriage way and 49.848 km of service road
has been De-scoped by the Authority for a reason not attributable to Concessionaire. The
Concessionaire has requested the Authority for rescoping of works and decision from Authority
is awaited. The IrconDHHL has awarded O&M Tender to M/s G R Engineers & Contractors
for Two years from 10" October, 2021.

Financial Performance

During the year, IrconDHHL achieved revenue from Operating activities of ¥797.76 Lakhs and
profit/(Loss) after tax for the Financial Year 2021-22 of ¥586.67 Lakhs.

IrconDHHL has availed Term Loan facility of ¥502.76 Crore from Punjab National Bank (PNB)

to finance the project.

During the year, out of the total sanctioned Term Loan of ¥502.76 Crore, ¥344.12 Crore has
been disbursed by PNB, after this, the outstanding balance of ¥326.72 Crore availed from
IRCON was repaid in full.

Compliances and Disclosures

Compliance and Disclosures under the Companies Act, 2013 and its associated rules there
under are fully being adhered to. CPSE’s constituted as Special Purposed (SPV) are
exempted from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs.

Hence, Corporate Governance guidelines of DPE are not applicable on your Company.
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)

During the period under review, your Company requested IRCON to grant it exemption from

compliance of Annual MOU exercise in line with the MOU Guidelines.
Acknowledgements

I, on behalf of Board of Directors, express my heartfelt thanks for the valuable assistance and
co-operation extended to the Company by Ministry of Road, Transport & Highways (MoRTH),
National Highways Authority of India (NHAI), Ircon International Limited and the Auditors of
the Company. | acknowledge the efforts of the Company’s employees, who are our most



valuable asset. Their dedication, intellect, hard work, and deep sense of value has been the

key to take our company forward.

We look forward to your continued support in our journey ahead.

For and on behalf of

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited

Sd/-

Ashok Kumar Goyal
Chairman
DIN: 05308809
Date: 04/08/2022

Place: New Delhi
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Dear Members,

Your Directors have immense pleasure in presenting the 5" Annual Report together with the

Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,2022.

BUSINESS OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS: PRESENT STATE OF COMPANY'’S AFFAIRS:

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited (IrconDHHL), a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon
International Limited (IRCON) incorporated on May 11, 2017 as a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV)
with the main object to execute “Six-laning of Davanagere- Haveri from km 260+000 to km
338+923 of NH-48 (old NH- 4) in the State of Karnataka, to be executed as Hybrid Annuity Mode
on Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis under NHDP Phase-V” in
accordance with the terms of the Concession Agreement, signed with the National Highways
Authority of India (NHAI) on June 19, 2017.

The concession period of the project comprises of construction period of 912 days (30 months)
commencing from the Appointed Date i.e. January 24, 2018 (as fixed by NHAI) and operation and
maintenance period of 15 years commencing from COD, with the total project bid cost is 1177
Crore plus escalation excluding Operation & Maintenance (O&M) cost. The scope of work
comprises of six-laning of 78.923 Km (total length of Highway) of existing four lane main
carriageway along with construction of 154.654 Km of service road length including major bridges,

culverts, Vehicular underpasses, pedestrian underpasses, flyovers and other allied works.

The Scheduled date of completion of project was 24.07.2020. NHAI has approved Extension of
Time (EOT) for the Project on account of COVID-19 upto 28.05.2021 and issued Provisional
Completion Certificate (PCC) w.e.f 28.05.2021 with certain punch list items. Accordingly, from the
said date, the project had entered into operation and maintenance phase for the period of 15
years and in order to place an agency to carry out the O&M for initially a period of 2 years through
open tender, O&M work has been awarded to M/s G R Engineers & Contractors, Mathura (U.P.)
w..e.f. 07.10.2021.

Due to hindrances not attributable to concessionaire, the Authority has descop the work of 6.88
Km of Main Carriage Way and 49.848 Km of Service Road. The District Collector of both
Davanagere and Haveri district has given assurance for providing all necessary support and
corporation to carry out the balance work for length of 6.88 Km. Hence, application for rescoping
of descoped work was submitted to the Authority through Supplementary agreement and is

pending with the Authority.

In order to avoid higher financial repercussion on account of descoping the balance works, the
efforts are being made to execute balance work to the extent possible within next one to two

years.

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2021-22
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During the year, IrconDHHL achieved revenue from Operating activities of ¥797.76 Lakhs and
profit/(Loss) after tax for the Financial Year 2021-22 of ¥586.67 Lakhs.

IrconDHHL has availed Term Loan facility of ¥502.76 Crore from Punjab National Bank (PNB) to
finance the project.

W,

During the year, out of the total sanctioned Term Loan of ¥502.76 Crore, ¥344.12 Crore has been
disbursed by PNB, after this, the outstanding balance of ¥326.72 Crore availed from IRCON was

repaid in full.

During the FY 2021-22, CARE Ratings Limited has provided AA- (Double A minus) rating for
the long-term bank facilities of Rs.502.76 Crore to your Company.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

In pursuance of the provisions enumerated under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules, 2015, the Company, has prepared its annual financial statements for the Financial Year
2021-22 as per Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS).

Financial performance indicators as on 315t March 2022:

(Amount in ¥ In Lakh)

For the Year For the Year
SI.No. | Particulars Ended Ended
31.03.2022 31.03.2021

1. Equity Share Capital 17,300.00 16,405.00
2. Other Equity (includes Reserves and Surplus) 2,392.23 419.56
3. Net Worth 19,692.23 16,824.56
4, Borrowings 36,404.65 33,855.15
5. Total Assets and Liabilities 61937.06 60044.99
6. Revenue from Operations 797.76 19,306.31
7. Other Income 3,773.32 89.42
8. Total Income (6) + (7) 4,571.08 19,395.73

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2021-22
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9. Profit Before Tax (8)-(11) 836.90 86.87
10. Profit/(Loss) After Tax 586.67 64.74
11. Balance of Profit/loss for earlier years 419.56 354.82
12. Balance carried forward 1006.23 419.56

2. DIVIDEND & APPROPRIATION TO RESERVE:

The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2021-22.

As per the applicability of IND AS, Reserves are reflected as Retained Earnings under the head
‘Other Equity’ in Financial Statements and your Company has a balance of ¥1006.23 Lakhs in
Retained Earnings as on March 31, 2022.

3. SHARE CAPITAL/ DEMATERIALISATION:

The Authorized Share Capital and the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company as on 315 March
2022 is ¥217.05 Crore comprising of 21,70,50,000 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each and %173 Crore
comprising of 17,30,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥10/- each respectively.

During the year, the Company has increased the Paid-up Share Capital of the Company from
Rs.164.05 Crores to Rs.173 Crores via Right issue.

The Details of the Rights issues made during the financial year are as follows:

Date of Allotment No. of Equity Shares Name of Allottee
allotted (of Rs.10 each)

October 22, 2021 76,90,000 Ircon International Limited

December 30, 2021 12,60,000 (Holding Company)

During the year under review, Ircon International Limited (IRCON) continues to hold 100% paid-

up share capital of IrconDHHL.

As per Rule 9A of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Amendment Rules,
2019 dated 22.01.2019, the Company being a wholly owned subsidiary (WOS) is not required to
get its securities in dematerialised form.

4. CASH FLOWS FROM THE PROJECT:

The total -Cash Flows from the project activities during the year is ¥(4,929.65) Lakh.

5. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

For the period under review there was no Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies of the

Company.

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2021-22 13
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6. IMPACT OF COVID-19 ON THE ECONOMY AND COMPANY'’S INITIATIVES IN ADDRESSING
THE CHALLENGES OF THE PANDEMIC

The COVID-19 pandemic has led to the unprecedented health crisis and has disrupted economic
activities and global trade while weighing on consumer sentiments. At the beginning of the
FY2021-22 the nation experienced high severity and mortality of citizens brought by the second
wave of the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic. With intermittent nationwide lockdowns and disruption
in regular economic activities, there was price volatility of raw materials and sluggish market
demand during first half of the year under review. However, the Company dealt with the pandemic
by continuing to focus on operational excellence, marketing strategies and keeping its employees
and community at the core of it. The Company has taken all the prescribed precautions as
suggested by the Government, to mitigate the impact of the novel coronavirus. The details on

impact of COVID-19 pandemic has been disclosed in the Financial Statements.

7. BOARD OF DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL.:

Board of Directors:

CATEGORY & NAME OF THE DIRECTORS WITH DESIGNATION DURING THE YEAR 2021-
22

As per Articles of Association of the Company, the Board of the Company is appointed by the
holding company, IRCON. During the FY 2022, Company’s management is headed by the

following Non-Executive (Nominee) Directors: -

Category, Name & Designation Appointment or Cessation (during the
year, if any)

Mr. Yogesh Kumar Mishra, 07654014 | Appointed w.e.f 13.05.2021

Chairman Regularized at the 4" AGM held on 18"
August 2021

Cessation w.e.f 01.10.2021
Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal, Chairman | 05308809 | Appointed w.e.f 01.10.2021

Mr. Surajit Dutta, Director 06687032 | Cessation w.e.f 01.04.2022

Ms. Ritu Arora, Director 00002455 | Appointed w.e.f 13.05.2021
Regularized at the 4" AGM held on 18"
August 2021

Mr. Shyam Lal Gupta, Director 07598920 | Cessation w.e.f 13.05.2021

Mr. Masood Ahmad, Director 09008553 | Appointed w.e.f. 02.08.2021

Mr. Parag Verma, Director 05272169 | Appointed w.e.f. 29.12.2021
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After the close of the FY, the Holding Company, IRCON had nominated Mr. Mugunthan Boju
Gowda [having DIN: 08517013], Chief General Manager, Finance, IRCON as Nominee Director
w.e.f. 15t April 2022 in place of Mr. Surajit Dutta. Subsequently, in place of Mr. Mugunthan Boju
Gowda, IRCON has nominted Mr. Rohit Parmar (having DIN No. 08190141), Chief General
Manager, Finance, IRCON, as Nominee Director w.e.f. 01.06.2022.

Mr. Parag Verma (DIN: 05272169) and Mr. Rohit Parmar were appointed as Additional Part-time
Directors of the Company w.e.f. December 29", 2021 and June 1%, 2022 respectively, who hold
office upto the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting. Their appointment as Directors by the
Shareholders same has been included in the notice of ensuing AGM.

The Company has received a notice under section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 from Mr.
Parag Verma and Mr. Rohit Parmar giving their candidature for appointment as Directors, liable

to retire by rotation, in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Board placed on record its appreciation for their valuable contribution and guidance & support
given by Mr. Yogesh Kumar Mishra, Mr. Surajit Dutta, Mr. Shyam Lal Gupta and Mr. Mugunthan

Boju Gowda during their tenure as Directors of the Company.

Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal (DIN 05308809) retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for
re-appointment. A resolution seeking shareholders’ approval for his re-appointment along with

other required details forms part of the Notice.

Key Managerial Personnel:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act 2013, the Key Managerial
Personnel (KMP) of the Company during the FY 2022 are as follows:

Name ‘ Designation

Mr. Nagangouda Hanumanthgouda Patil Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Kratika Gupta Chief Financial Officer
(upto 30.06.2021)

Mr. Mahadeb Mandal Chief Financial Officer
(w.e.f. 01.07.2021)

Ms. Pooja Rastogi Company Secretary
(Cessation w.e.f. 31.03.2022)

After the closure of the Financial Year, Mr. Pradeep Kumar Baisoya was appointed as Company

Secretary and was declared as KMP of the Company w.e.f. April 12, 2022 vice Ms. Pooja Rastogi.

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2021-22 15
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8. Board Meetings:

During the FY 2021-22, the Board met Ten (10) times on 15.06.2021, 19.07.2021, 10.08.2021,
14.10.2021, 22.10.2021, 08.11.2021, 23.12.2021, 30.12.2021, 24.01.2022 and 08.02.2022. The
interval between the Board Meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act,

2013. The attendance detail of the Board Meetings is as follows:

15.06.2021
19.07.2021
10.08.2021
14.10.2021
22.10.2021
08.11.2021
23.12.2021
30.12.2021
24.01.2022
08.02.2022

ol ol o] | Ml M| B B M| D
B N L Ol I N B GV B B ) B S R

The table below shows attendance of the Board members at the Board Meetings held during
the FY 2020-21 and their attendance in the last Annual General Meeting (AGM):

Name of Meeting Date Whether Total No. of % of

Director attended | Meetings Meetings Atten

last AGM held attended danc
held on |during the e
18.08.2021| tenure

15.06.2021
19.07.201
10.08.2021
14.10.2021
22.10.2021
08.11.2021

| 23.12.2021
| 30.12.2021

| 24.01.2022
| 08.02.2022

AN
<
«
AN
«
x

Mr. Ashok

Kumar Goyal

Mr. Yogesh VIV |- -] -] -]-]- Y 3 3 100
Kumar Mishra
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(upto
01.10.2021)

Mr. Surajit VI VIV IV IV VI IVI|YV|YV]|x Y 10 9 90
Dutta

Ms.RituArora | v |V |V | x |V |V |V | x | x | ¥V Y 10 7 70
(w.e.f.
13.05.2021)

Mr. Masood - - VYV VY|V VY Y 8 8 100
Ahmad (w.e.f.
02.08.2021)

Mr. Parag -] - -] -T-1T-1Tvv]y - 3 3 100
Verma (w.e.f
29.12.2021)

9. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS & BOARD COMMITTEES & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
GUIDELINES ISSUED BY DPE:

In terms of notification dated July 5, 2017 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) inter-
alia amending rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014,
an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary is exempted from the requirement of
appointing Independent Directors on its Board and requirement of constituting of the Board

Committees viz. Audit Committee and Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC).

IrconDHHL, an unlisted public company and a wholly-owned subsidiary company of IRCON, is,
therefore, not required to appoint any Independent Director on its Board and the declaration by
the Independent Directors is not applicable on the Company.

Further, in terms of Department of Public Enterprises (DPE)'s OM dated July 8-10, 2014 read with
OM dated July 11, 2019, CPSE’s constituted as Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) are exempted
from compliance with the DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs. Hence,

Corporate Governance guidelines of DPE are not applicable on IrconDHHL.

10. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

The Board of Directors of the Company confirms:

a) that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended
31t March 2022, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper
explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b) that such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgment and

estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
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of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year March 31, 2022 and of
the Profit & Loss of the Company for that period ended on that date;

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the

assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
d) that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e) that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

11. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

The extract of Annual Return in Form MGT-9 pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 12 of Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is appended
as Annexure-1 forming part of this report and also available on the website at a

12. DIRECTORS’ OBSERVATION AND COMMENTS FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(EXPLANATION FOR ANY COMMENTS MADE BY AUDITORS IN THEIR REPORT:

The Notes to Accounts forming part of the financial statements are self-explanatory and need no

further explanation.

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks in the Auditors’ Report which require any

clarification/explanation.
13. AUDITORS:

Statutory Auditor:

M/s Singhal Sunil & Associates, Chartered Accountants, had been appointed as Statutory
Auditors, for the Financial Year 2021-22 vide CAG letter No. CA. V/CQOY/ Central Government,
IDHHL(1)395 dated 18.08.2021. They have confirmed by way of a written consent and certificate
as required under Section 139(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Cost Auditor:

The Board of Directors had re-appointed M/s. Ravi Sahni & Co., Cost Accountants, as Cost
Auditor of the Company for the FY 2021-22 for conducting the audit of cost records maintained

by the Company as per the applicable Rules / Guidance Note, etc.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Act, read with the Companies (Cost

Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Company has maintained cost accounts and records.
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Secretarial Auditor:

The Board of Directors had appointed M/s. Jayesh Parmar & Associates, Company Secretary, as
Secretarial Auditor of the Company for the FY 2021-22.

Internal Auditor:

The Board of Directors appointed M/s Arvind Rattan & Co., LLP, Chartered Accountants, as
Internal Auditors for the FY 2021-22, to conduct the Internal Audit of the Company.

14. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013:

There are no transactions of loans, guarantees and investments as covered under the provisions

of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year under review.

15. COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE BY CEO & CFO:

The compliance certificate duly signed by CEO & CFO was placed before the Board of Directors
meeting held on 17.05.2022 and the same is placed as Annexure-2.

16. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

During the year, the related party transactions with the holding company, IRCON were in the
ordinary course of business and on an arm’s length basis and approved in terms of the Companies
Act 2013. The details of the related party transactions in form AOC-2 are enclosed to this report

as Annexure-3.

17. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY AFTER THE CLOSURE OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR:

No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company had

occurred in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report.

18. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

Every company having Net Worth of ¥500 crore or more or Turnover of 1000 crore or more or
Net Profit of %5 crore or more during the immediately preceding FY is required to spend in every
FY, at least 2% of average net profits of the company made during the three immediately

preceding FY in pursuance of its CSR Policy.

Since, the company did not meet the above threshold limit in the preceding financial year ended
March 31, 2021, the provision of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under Section 135 of the
Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company during the FY 2021-22.
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Hence, the requirement of constituting Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 is also not applicable to the Company.

However, the net profit of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2022 exceeds the
above mentioned threshold limit, therefore, the provision of Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be applicable to the Company for the FY
2022-23.

19. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

The particulars as prescribed under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule

8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are set out hereunder:

A. Conservation of energy: -

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of
particulars is not applicable to the Company.

B. Technology absorption: -

Your Company is not engaged in any manufacturing activity and hence the furnishing of

particulars is not applicable to the Company.

C. Foreign exchange earnings and Qutgo: -

There was no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Foreign Exchange Outgo during the year
2021-22.

20. RISK MANAGEMENT:

In the opinion of the Board, presently the Company does not foresee any major threat/risk to the

business of the Company.

21. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

As per Notification dated June 5, 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government
Companies are exempted from complying with the provisions of Section 197 of the Companies

Act, 2013 and corresponding rules under Chapter XIII.

IrconDHHL being a government company is not required to disclose information on the
remuneration of employees falling under the criteria prescribed under rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel), as a part of the Directors' Report.
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22. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS:

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year 2021-22.

23. PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

During the year under review, your Company has not invited any deposits from its members

pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

24. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has adequate system of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. All the transactions were properly authorized, recorded and reported to the
Management. The Company is following all the applicable Accounting Standards for properly
maintaining the books of account and reporting in the financial statements. Your Company
continues to ensure proper and adequate systems and procedures commensurate with its size

and nature of its business.

25. SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS
IN FUTURE

No order has passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals impacting the going concern status

of the Company and its operations in future during the FY 2021-22.

26. COMPLIANCE OF MSME GUIDELINES FOR IMPLEMENTATION OF PURCHASE
PREFERENCE POLICY

In exercise of powers conferred by section 9 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006, the Central Government issued instructions that all companies registered
under the Companies Act, 2013 with a turnover of more than ¥500 Crore and all CPSEs shall be
required to get themselves on-boarded on the Trade Receivables Discounting System (TReDS)
platform, set up as per the notification of the Reserve Bank of India. The Registrar of Companies
(RoC) in each State shall be the competent authority to monitor the compliance of such
instructions and also the Department of Public Enterprises, Government of India shall be the
competent authority to monitor the compliance of such instructions by the CPSEs. In compliance
with the above instruction, the Company has boarded on the TReDS platform w.e.f. 13.12.2019,
to facilitate the financing of trade receivables of MSEs by discounting of their receivables and

realisation of their payment before the due date.

27.DISCLOSURE AS PER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:
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During the period under review, there was no complaint pending at the beginning nor any
complaint relating to sexual harassment was reported pursuant Section 22 of The Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

The Company, being a wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, ‘Policy for Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal of Sexual Harassment at Workplace’ of IRCON (POSH Policy) is applicable on the
Company and the Internal Complaints Committee of IRCON will deal with all the complaint, if any,
under POSH Act.

28.VIGIL MECHANISM:

The Company has established a mechanism for directors and employees to report concerns
about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud, or violation of the Code. It also provides for
adequate safeguards against the victimization of employees who avail the mechanism. Being a
wholly owned subsidiary of IRCON, for employees nominated and deputed from IRCON, the
Whistle Blower Policy of IRCON is applicable, which is available on the website at,
https://www.ircon.org/images/file/cosecy/Whistle-Blower-Policy.pdf.

For other persons in employment of the Company, complaint / reporting under Vigil Mechanism
can be addressed to:

Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal, Director

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited (IrconDHHL)

Address: Ircon International Limited,

C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi- 110017

Phone No.: +91 9560595019

Email id: ak.goyal@ircon.org

29. RIGHT TO INFORMATION:

During the financial year 2021-22, your company has not received any application under the Right
to Information Act 2005.

30. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD MEMBERS:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs has, vide its notification dated 5th June 2015, notified the exemptions
to Government Companies from certain provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 which inter-alia
provides that Section 134(3)(p) regarding a statement indicating the manner of formal annual
evaluation of Board, shall not apply to Government Companies in case the Directors are
evaluated by the Ministry which is administratively in charge of the Company as per its evaluation

methodology.

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2021-22 92



HEDMamml

Further, the aforesaid circular issued by the MCA has also exempted that sub-sections (2), (3) &
(4) of Sec. 178 regarding the appointment, performance evaluation and remuneration shall not
apply to Directors of Government Companies.

Being a government company and a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited, all
part-time Directors are nominated by the holding company, IRCON. The evaluation of these
nominated directors is done by the holding company as per pre-defined criteria in line with the

guidelines of the Government of India.

31. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

During the year, the Company is in compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI).

32. SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

The “Secretarial Audit Report” from the secretarial auditor in Form MR-3 as required under section
204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and is placed as Annexure-4.

33. STATUTORY AUDITORS’ REPORT AND C&AG COMMENTS

The reports of the Statutory Auditors on the Financial Statements for FY 2021-22 with nil
observation are attached separately as part of the Annual Report and Nil comments from

Comptroller & Auditor General (C&AG) are received.

34. APPLICATION/PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER INSOLVENCY & BANKRUPTCY CODE,
2016

There are no proceeding initiated/ pending against the Company under the Insolvency &

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 which materially impact the business of the Company.

35. MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MoU):

Companies, that are subsidiary Company of a CPSE, will sign Annual MOU with its Holding
Company pursuant to the provision of Consolidated Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
Guidelines dated March 10, 2022. Your Company, incorporated as wholly owned subsidiary of
IRCON and as SPV, shall sign Annual MOU with IRCON (holding company).

During the period under review, your Company requested IRCON to grant it exemption from

compliance of Annual MOU exercise in line with the MOU Guidelines.
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36. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

We thank Ircon International Limited, Ministry of Road Transport & Highways, Comptroller and
Auditors General of India (C&AG), Auditors and our valued client- National Highway Authority of

Indian for their support, and look forward to their continued support in the future.

We thank our Contractors, Sub-contractors, Bankers, for their continued support during the year.
We also place on record our appreciation for the contribution made by our employees at all levels.

Our consistent growth was made possible by their hard work, solidarity, cooperation and support.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Date: 04.08.022 of Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited

Place: New Delhi

Sd/-

Ashok Kumar Goyal
Chairman

DIN: 05308809
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ANNEXURE-1

FORM NO. MGT 9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2022

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1. |CIN U45500DL2017GO0OI317401
2. | Registration Date 11t May, 2017
3. | Name of the Company Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
4. |a) Category Public Company
b) Sub-category of the Company Government Company (Wholly-owned Subsidiary
Company of Ircon International Limited)
5. | Address of the Registered office & C-4, District Centre, Saket, New Delhi -110017
contact details Ph. No. 011-26545786
Email Id: ircondhhl@gmail.com
6. | Whether Listed Company (Yes/No) No
7. | Name, Address & contact details of NIL
the Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any.

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY: (All the business activities contributing 10
% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated)

S.

No.

Name and Description of Main
Products / Services

NIC Code of the % to Total Turnover
Products/Services of the Company

1.

Rendering Services in the nature of
construction of Highway Project on NH
48 (old NH-4) in the state of Karnataka

(Through EPC Contractor)

Construction Services: Highway Project

- 42101 100

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

S. No. | Name and CIN/GLN Holding/ % of Applicable
Address of Subsidiary Shares | Section
the | Associate held
Company

1 Ircon L45203DL1976G0OI008171 | Holding 100% * Sec 2(46)
International Company
Limited

*100% Shares held by Ircon International Limited (Ircon) and its 7 nominees.

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2021-22
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
A) CATEGORY-WISE SHARE HOLDING:

Category of No. of Shares held at the No. of Shares held at the end of the %
Shareholders beginning of the year, year Change
[As on 01-April-2021] [As on 31-March-2022] during
Demat | Physical Total % of | Demat Physical Total % of |the year
Total Total
Shares Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/ - - - - - - - - -
HUF

b) Central Govt - - - - - - - - -

c) State Govt(s) - B B - - - - - -

)
d) Bodies Corp.# | Nil 164050000 | 164050000 | 100% Nil 173000000 | 173000000 | 100% -
e) Banks / FI

f) Any other B - - - - - - -

(2) Foreign

Total Nil 164050000 | 164050000 | 100% Nil 173000000 | 173000000 | 100% -
Shareholding
of Promoters
(A)

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

[

)
)
) Central Govt
d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture - - - - - - - - -
Capital Funds

f) Insurance - - - - - - - - -
Companies

g) Flls - - - - - - N N R

h) Foreign - - - - - - - - -
Venture Capital
Funds

i) Others - - - - - - - - -
(specify)

Sub-total - - - - - - - - _
(B)(1):-

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -

i) Indian

i) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual - - - - - - - - -
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital
upto * 1 lakh
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c) Others -
(specify)

Non Resident -
Indians

Overseas -
Corporate
Bodies

Foreign -
Nationals

Clearing -
Members

Trusts -

Foreign Bodies - -
DR

Sub-total -
(B)(2):-

Total Public B
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+
(B)2)

C. Shares held -
by Custodian
for GDRs &
ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

Nil

164050000

164050000

100%

Nil

173000000

173000000

100% -

# Bodies Corporate: 100% Shareholding is with Body Corporate — Ircon International Limited and its 7 Nominees.

B) SHAREHOLDING OF PROMOTERS:

SN| Shareholder’s | Shareholding at the beginning| Shareholding at the end of the %
Name of the year, as on 1% April 2021 | year, as on 315t March 2022 Change
No. of % of %of No. of % of %of in
Shares Total Shares Shares Total | Shares Shareho
Shares |Pledged / Shares [Pledged/ | Iding
of the |encumber of the |encumbe | during
Compan ed to total company| redto the Year
y shares Total
Shares
1 |lrcon International | 164050000 100% Nil 173000000 100% Nil 0.00%
Limited
Total 164050000 100% Nil 173000000 100% Nil 0.00%

*Shareholding of Promoters: Company is wholly-owned subsidiary of Ircon International Limited — with
17,29,99,200 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each i.e. Entire Shareholding held by Indian Promoters. The other 7
individual shareholders are holding shares “For and on behalf of Ircon International Limited”.
*On 18t April, 2022, 100 shares held by Mr. Surajit Dutta, nominee shareholder on behalf of IRCON were
transferred to Ms. Ritu Arora, nominee shareholder on behalf of IRCON.

C) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS’ SHAREHOLDING:

SN | Particulars Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the Year during the Year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares Shares of the Shares Shares of
Company the

IrconDHHL- Annual Report 2021-22
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Company

1. | At the Beginning of the Year

16,40,50,000 100%

16,40,00,000 100%

2. | Date wise Increase /
(Decrease) in Promoters
Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for
increase / (decrease) (e.g.
allotment /transfer / bonus/
sweat equity etc.):

Date of | Reason
Allotment

22.10.2021 Right Issue

76,90,000 100%

17,17,40,000 100%

30.12.2021 Right Issue

12,60,000 100%

17,30,00,000 100%

3. | At the End of the Year

17,30,00,000 100%

17,30,00,000 100%

D) SHAREHOLDING PATTERN OF TOP TEN SHAREHOLDERS:
(OTHER THAN DIRECTORS, PROMOTERS AND HOLDERS OF GDRS AND ADRS):

SN | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the | Cumulative Shareholding
Shareholders beginning during the year
of the year
No. of % of total | No. of % of Total
Shares Shares of | Shares Shares of
the the
Company Company
1. | At the Beginning of the Year
2. | Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for NOT APPLICABLE
increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):
3. | At the End of the Year

E) SHAREHOLDING OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

Shareholding of Each Director(s)
and Each Key Managerial
Personnel*

Shareholding at the

Cumulative Shareholding

beginning during the
of the Year, as on 31%t Year as on 315t March
March 2021 2022
No. of % of total No. of % of total
Shares | Shares of the Shares | Shares of the
Company Company

At the Beginning of the Year

Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):

At the End of the Year

NIL

* 200 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each are held by Mr. Ashok Kumar Goyal and 100 Equity Shares each of Rs.10
each are held by Mr. Parag Verma and Mr. Mugunthan Boju Gowda, Directors of the Company “For and on

behalf of Ircon International Limited”.
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F) INDEBTEDNESS - Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued
but not due for payment.

(In Lakhs)
Particulars Secured Secured | Unsecured | Deposits Total
Loans Loans Loan Indebtedness
excludin | excluding
g deposits
deposits |(from PNB)
(from
IRCON)
Indebtedness at the
beginning of the financial
year
i) Principal Amount - | 33,093.15 2,646.00 - 35,739.15
i) Interest due but not paid - 223.45 - - 223.45
iii) Interest accrued but not
due ) ) ) )
Total (i+ii+iii) -| 33,316.60 2,646.00 - 35,962.60
Change in Indebtedness
during the financial year
* Addition - 3,203.69 1,230.00 - 4,433.69
* Reduction - | (2,107.64) - - (2,107.64)
Net Change - 1,096.05 1,230.00 - 2,326.05
Indebtedness at the end of
the financial year
i) Principal Amount - | 34412.65 3876.00 - 38288.65
ii) Interest due but not paid - - - - -
iii) Interest accrued but not
due ) ) ) ) )
Total (i+ii+iii) -| 34412.65 3876.00 - 38288.65

V. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-

A. REMUNERATION TO MANAGING DIRECTOR, WHOLE-TIME DIRECTORS AND / OR MANAGER:

SN. Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total
Amount

Particulars of Remuneration

1. | Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961
Stock Option

Sweat Equity

Commission

- as % of profit

- others, specify...

5. | Others, please specify
Total (A)
Ceiling as per the Act

NOT APPLICABLE

Blwn
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SN.

Particulars of Remuneration @

Name of Directors Total
Amount

1

Independent Directors

Fee for attending board committee
meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending board committee
meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act

NOT APPLICABLE

@ All the Part-time Directors during the financial year 2021-22 are nominated on the Board by the holding
company; do not draw any remuneration from the Company. No sitting fee is paid to the Part-time Directors.

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD):

S.No

Particulars of

Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. N. Mr. Mahadeb
Patil, CEO | Mandal, CFO
(From July
2021 to March,
22)

Ms. Pooja Ms. Kratika Total
Rastogi, CS | Gupta, CFO
(From April,
2021 to
June, 2021)

Gross Salary 14.25 13.04

5.16 4.40 36.85

(a) Salary as -
per provisions
contained in
section 17(1)
of the
Income-tax
Act, 1961

(b) Value of -
perquisites
u/s 17(2)
Income-tax
Act, 1961

(c) Profits in -
lieu of salary
under section
17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961

Stock Option -

Sweat Equity -

BIWIN

Commission -

as % of profit -
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others, - - - - -
specify...
5 Others, - - - - -
please specify
Performance - - - 0.86 0.86
linked
incentive
(PRP)
- Retirement 1.71 4.28 0.62 1.32 7.93
benefits
(Pension, PF)
Total 15.96 17.32 5.78 6.58 45.64
VI. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:
Type Section of Brief Compounding | Authority Appeal
the Description | fees imposed | [RD/NCLT/ made,
Companies COURT] if any (give
Act Details)
A. COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited

sd/-
Ashok Kumar Goyal
Chairman
DIN: 05308809

Date: 04.08.2022
Place: New Delhi
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LIST OF SHAREHOLDESRS

Annexure

Paid up Share Capital of the Company = Rs.173 Cr

Number of Equity

Name of Shareholders Shares held (of Rs.10 % of holding
each)

Ircon International Limited
(For 5" AGM of IrconDHHL,
Ms. Ritu Arora, Company 172,999,200 99.99
Secretary/lrcon has been nominated
by Ircon as its representative)
Ashok Kumar Goyal* 200 Negligible
Shyam Lal Gupta* 100 Negligible
Surender Singh* 100 Negligible
Ritu Arora* 100 Negligible
Parag Verma* 100 Negligible
Subhash Chand* 100 Negligible
B. Mugunthan* 100 Negligible
TOTAL 173,000,000 100

*Nominee shareholders holding shares on behalf of Ircon International Limited.

(After Closure of FY 2021-22, IRCON withdrawn nomination of Mr. Yogesh Kumar Misra and Mr.
Surajit Dutta as nominee shareholder and nominated Mr. Surender Singh and Ms. Ritu Arora.)
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO)
CERTIFICATION

We have reviewed the Financial Statements including the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit &
Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the Financial Year 2021-22 and to the best of our
knowledge and belief: -

(i)

(ii

(iii)

(iv)

These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or
contain statement that might be misleading;

These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

These are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal, or violative of the Company‘s General
Code of Conduct as agreed to be followed by the Directors and Senior Management of the
Company.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the
Company pertaining to financial reporting. We have disclosed to the auditor’s deficiencies in
the design or operation of such internal controls of which we are aware and the steps we
have taken or propose to rectify these deficiencies.

We have indicated to the Auditor any changes in Accounting Policies that may have been
effected during the year, and that the same have been disclosed in the Notes to the Financial
Statements; and

There was no instance of fraud of which we are aware nor there has been involvement of the
Management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control
system over financial reporting.

Sd/- sd/-
Mr. Nagangouda Hanumanthgouda Patil Mr. Mahadeb Mandal
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Chief Financial Officer(CFO)

Date: 14.07.2022
Place: New Delhi
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ANNEXURE -3

FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8 (2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto for the
financial year 2021-22

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NIL
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis: as follows

Salient terms of the Date(s) of
Duration of the | Contracts or Amount
Nature of contracts approval .
Sr. contracts or | Arrangements or paid as
or arrangements or . by the
No. : arrangements or | Transactions . advances,
transactions . . . Board, if . :
transactions including the value, anv: if any:
if any y:
Date: EPC
Agreement
dated 04.01.2018
EPC Agreement
(For Appointing Ircon | Duration:
International Limited | Completion period
) August 10,
as EPC Contractor for |is 30 months from . .
X . . Consideration: 2021,
execution of project | Appointed date or
“ai : . Rs.916.93 February NIL (As on
1. works of “Six Laning | handing over of
4 Crore plus  GST | 20,2018 & Date)
of Davanagere Haveri | land by the @12% November
from km 260+000 to | Company to o 9. 2017
km 338+923 of NH- | IRCON whichever ’
48(0ld NH-4 ) in the |is later. Further,
state of Karnataka” extended up to
26.08.2021  vide
IrconDHHL letter
dated 10.08.2021.
. Lease Agreement
Lease Agreement Ejg?izfd executed on 9"
2 (To take on lease the | 1 year, 7 months ﬁ:g# Sr:aig\jvgegw eh ?S June 15, NIL (As
" | Office Premises of and 15 days 15.05.2021 till T 2021 on Date)
IRCON) (15.05.2021 to 31.03.2023 ¥21236/-
31.03.2023)
p.m plus GST.
For and on behalf of Board of Directors
of Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
sd/-
Ashok Kumar Goyal
Date: 04.08.2022 Chairman
Place: New Delhi DIN: 05308809
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ANNEXURE -4

ﬂs Jayesh Parmar & Associates

Practising Company Secretary
91+9899339796
E-mail — csjayeshparmar@gmail.com

ANNEXURE TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANICAL YEAR ENDED 31T MARCH, 2022

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

M/s. IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
Regd. Office: Plot No. C-4, District Centre, Saket

New Delhi-110017

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate governance practice by IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI
HIGHWAY LIMITED having CIN: U45500DL2017GOI317401 (hereinafter called “the
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s Books, Papers, Minutes Books, Forms and Returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company,
its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby
report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the financial year ended 315 March, 2022,
complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board
processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting
made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31t March, 2022 according to the
provisions of:

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there under;

(i1) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India:
Applicability of SS-1and SS-2;
(ii1) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under

to the extent of foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment, External
Commercial Borrowings; wherever applicable,

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.
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We report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
that took place during the year under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of
the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes
on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and on shorter notice with the consent of Directors,
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda
items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

We further report that compliance of applicable financial laws including Direct and Indirect Tax
laws by the Company has not been reviewed in this Audit since the same has been subject to review
by the Statutory Auditors and other designated professionals.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidelines.

For Jayesh Parmar & Associates
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Jayesh Parmar

(Proprietor)

Place: New Delhi ACS No.:27055
Date: May 10, 2022 C.P No.:15007

UDIN: A027055D000296390

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as 'Annexure A' and forms an
integral part of this report.
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Annexure A
To
The Members
M/s. IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express as opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe
that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of
the Company.

For Jayesh Parmar & Associates

Sd/-
Jayesh Parmar
Company Secretaries
(Proprietor)
Place: New Delhi ACS No.:27055
Date: May 10, 2022 C.P No.:15007
UDIN: A027055D000296390
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of

IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
C -4, District Centre

Saket, New Delhl [IN) -—110 017

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of IRCON DAVANAGERE
HAVER{ HIGHWAY LIMITED ("tha Campany”} which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash
Flows far the period then ended and Notes to the Financial Statements including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as
“Standalone Financial Statements®.

This report, revised consequent upon observations of Comptrolier and Auditor General of India
during the course of audit u/s 139(5} of The Companies Act, 2013 {“The Act”) for the year ended
31%* March 2022, supersedes our earlier repart dated 17" May 2022 u/s 143 of The Companies

Act, 2013.

OPINION

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by The Companies
Act, 2013 {“the Act"} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (lndian Accounting Standards) Rules,2015, as amended, (“IndAS"} and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2022, the profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows

far the period ended an the date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) speciffed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our respansibilities
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
y ndafone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in

tgnents under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under,
arighive nave fulfilled aur other ethical respansibilities in accordance with these reguirements and

4 ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our prefessional judgment, were of mast significance
in our aucit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the Stapdalone Financial 5tatements as a whaole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, anc we do not prévide a separate opinion an these matters. We
have determined that there are no Key Audit Matters te communicate in aur report.

INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR'S
REPORT THEREON .

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible far the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information inzluded in the Company’s annual report but
does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our
opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do

not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Staternents, our respansibility is to read
the ather information and, in doing so, mnsidis{r whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have perfarmed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT AND THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Caompanies Act, 2013 {“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial
Statermnents that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes
in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian accaunting Standards {IndAS} specified under saction 133
of the Act read with the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from

time to time.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting recards in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and desigr,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial contrels, that were operating
effectively far ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
~mreparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
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AUDITOR™S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assur'ang:e about whathear the financial staterments as a
whole are free from material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that incfudes our apinion. Reasonable assurance is a high leve! of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect 2 matertal
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are caonsidered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they coufd reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis gf these financial statements.

As part of an aucit in accordance with SAs, we exercise prefessional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or errar, design and perform audit procedures respansive to thase risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate tc provide a basis for our opinfan. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from errer, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentatians, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the aucit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section1d43(3}){i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing cur epinion an whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effactivenass of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and relatec disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’'s use of the going concern hasis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our suditer’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events
ar conditions may cause the Company to cease to centinue as a going concern.

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

riality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
dually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisicns of a reasonably
¥ledgeable user of the financial statements rnay be influenced. We consider guantitative
fuftiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating
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«  We communicate with those charged with govermance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scape and tirning of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal contrel that we identify during our audit.

» We also provide these charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicabie, related safeguards.

*  From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine thase
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of
the current period and are therefore the keyaudit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communicaticn,

REFORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. As required by The Companies [Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 {“the Order”), issued by the
Government of India in tarms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of The Companies Act, 2013,
we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Orcer, tothe extentapplicable. a

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we reportthat:

a. We have sought and obtained all the Infermation and exalenations, which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necassaryforthe purpeses of ouraudit.

b. In our opinicn, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examinatian of thase books.

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), and the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with

by this Report are in agreement with the bhooks of account.

d. In our gpinion, the aforesaid Standalane Financial Statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards (IndAS) specified under Sectian 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies [Accounts) Rules, 2014,

Being @ government company, provision of section 164(2) of the Act are not applicable
ursuant to the notification No. GSR 463 (E) dated 5th lune 2015, issued by the

overnment of India.

ith respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls cver financial reporting of
the company and the aperating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
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g Being a government company, provision of section 197 of the Act are not applicable vide
notification No. G5R 463 (E) dated 5th June 2015, issued by the Central Government of

India.

h. With respect to the ather matters to be included in the Auditor's Repart in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditers} Rules, 2014 as amended, in our
apinion and ta the best of our infarmation and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would have a material
impact an its financial position.

ii. Based on the assessment made by the Company, there are no material faresecable
losses on long-term cantracts that may reguire any gravisioning, The Company did
not have any derivative contracts for which there were any material foraseeable

losses,

iiil. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to tha Investar
Educatian and Protectian Fund by the Company.

{a) The Management has represented that, to the hest of its knowledge and belief, no
funds {which are material either individually or in the aggregate} have been
acdvanced or loaned or invasted {either from horrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entity {(“Intermediaries”}, with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly ar
indirectly lend or invest in other persons ar entities icentified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide
any guarantee, security ar the likean behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and helief, no
funds {which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company from any persan ar entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shail, whether, directly ar indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or previde any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarfes;

Based an the audit procedures that have been considered reasanable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i} and (ii} of Rule 1i{e), as
provided under (2} and (b) above, contain any material misstatament.

The Company has not propaosed, declared or paid any final or interim dividend
during the period and until the date of this report, therefere, the reporting under

clause is not applicable.
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3. As required by Section 143(5) of the Act and as per directions issued by Camptroller and

Auditor General of Incia, we repart that:

\

Directions

SN

Auditor’s Replies

1. | Whether the company has system in place to
pracess all the accounting transactions through
IT system? If yes, the implications of processing
of accounting transactions outside IT system
on the Integrity of the accounts along with the
financial implications, if any, may be stated.

Company is using SAP system to process all
the accounting transactions. As per the
information and explanation provided to us
nmo  accounting  transactions have been
processed outside the IT System.

2. | Whether there is any restructuring of an
existing loan or cases of waiver / write off of
debts/loans/interest etc. made by a lender to
the company due to the company's inability to
repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may
be stated. Whether such cases are properly
accounted for? (In case, lender is a
Government company, then this direction is
also applicable for statutory auditor of lender

company).

No, Company is having nc case of any
restructuring of an existing loan or cases of
waiver / write off of debts / loans / interest
etc. made by a lender to the company due to
the company's inability to repay the loan.

3. | Whether funds (grants / subsidy etc.) received
/ receivabie for specific schemes from Central /
State Government c¢r its agencies were
properly acccunted for / utilized as per its term
and conditions? List the cases of deviation

According ta the information and explanation
given te us and as per our examination of
records, no funds have been received [/
receivable for any specific scheme from
Central / State Gevernment or its agencies
during the period from 1% April, 2021 to 31
March 2022,
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF IRCON DAVANAGERE HIGHWAY
LIMITED FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2022

(Referred to in paragroph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulotory Requirements’ section of our
report to the members of IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED cf even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and
the baoks of account and records examinead by us in the narmal course of audit, we report that:

. In respect of Company’s Fixed Assets ~

a. The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situaticn of fixed assets.
The company is not having any intangible assets; hence this clause Is not applicable.
According to the information and explanations given to us, the Fixed Assets have been
physically verified by the management in a phased manner at reasonabie intervais, and
no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. Further, there Is a regular
program of verification, which in our opinion, is reascnable having regard to the size of
the company and nature of its business.

. The company does not own any immovable properties during the period of audit.

e. The Campany has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use
Assets) or intangible asseis or both during the year.

f.  According to the infermation and-explanatiun given to us, no proceedings have been
initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prehibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thareunder

during the year.

2, In respect of Inventories =

The Company does not have any inventory and na working capital limits in excess of Rupees
Five Crores (at any point of time during the vear), in aggregate, from banks ar financiaf
institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ii)

of the Order are not applicable.

3. According to informaticn and explanation given tc us by the management and records
produced before us, the company has during the year, not made investments in, provided any
guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or
unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or ather parties covered in the
register required under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, reporting under
Clause 3(iii) of the order is not applicable.

this e figs been intentionally feft blunk
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4. In our opinion and accarding tc information and explanation given to us by the management
and records produced before us, the company has not granted any loans or provided any
guarantees or given any security or made any investments ta which the provision of section
185 and 186 of the Companfes Act, 2013 are attracted. Accerdingly, reperting under
paragraph 3(iv) of the order is not applicable.

5. in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the
management and records produced before us, the company has not accepted any deposits
from public and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions
of secticns 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies
{Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2015 with regard to the deposits accepted from the public are
not applicable. Accordingly, the pravisions of cfause 3({v) of the Order are not applicable,

a. The Company has maintained cost recards as required under Section 148(1) of The Companies
Act, 2013. However, we are neither required to carry cut, nor have carried out any detailed

examination of such accounis and records.

7. In respect of statutory dues—

a. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income tax,
goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to the company have heen generally regularly
deposited during the year by the company with the appropriate autharities.

b. According to the information and explanations given tc us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of provident fund, income tax, gduds and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise,
value added tax, cess and cther material statutory dues were it arrears as at March 31,
2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

¢. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the records
of the company examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, goods and service tax,
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues
which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2022 on account of any dispute.

In our opinion and accarding to the information and explanation given to us, the company has
na iransactions, not recorded in the beoks of account which have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961

(43 of 1951);
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9. In respect of loans and berrowings taken by the Company —

a. Based on the review of accounts and as per informaticn provide, the company has not
defaulted inrepayment of loans or ather borrewings or in the payment of interest therzan

to any lender during the vear;
b. The Company is not declared wilful defautter by any bank or financial institution or any

other lender;

c. According to the information and explanation given to us, term icans were applied for the
purpose for which the loans were chtained;

d. According to the infoermation and explanation given to us, funds raised on shart term basis
have not been utilized for long term-_purposes;

e. Accerding to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of ar to meet the obfigations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures;

f. According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not raised loans
during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or
associate companies and hence reporting under Clause 3(ix}{f) of the Order is not

applicable.
10.

a. The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer cr further public offer
{including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, reparting under clause 3{x)(a} of
the order is not applicable.

b. The Compary has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
canvertible debentures (fully or partly or aptionally) and hence reporting under clause
3{x){b) of the order is not applicable.

11.

a. To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanatians given to
us, no fraud by the Company ar no material fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees has been naticed or reported during the year and during the course of our audit.

b. According to the information and explanation given to us, no report under sub-section (12]
of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Ferm ADT-4 as
prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central

Government;
. According to the information and explanaticn given to us, no whistle-blower complzints,

have been received during the year by the company;

{this space has been Intentionally ieft blenk)
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132, According to the information and explanations given tc us and based on our examination of
the records of the company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of the Act. Where applicable, the details of such transactions have been
disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14,
a. In our cpinion the Company has an zdequate internal audit system commensurate with

the size and the nature of its businese.
k. We have considered, the internal audit reports for the period under audit, issued to the

Company during the period and tiill date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of
our audit procedures.

15. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on cur examination of
the recards of the company, the company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connacted with them, within the previsions of Section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the order is not applicable.

16.
a. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination

of the records of the company, the company is not required to be registered under section
45-14 of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi) {a), (b}

and (c} of the order is not applicable.
b. In our opinion, there Is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the
Core [nvestment Companies (Reserve Bank] Directions, 2016} and accordingly reperting

under clause 3(xvi}{d) of the order is not applicable.

17. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted, we are of opinion that the company has not incurred any cash losses in the
financtal year and the immediately preceding financial year.

18, There has been no rasignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(xviii} of the order is not applicable;

tiis spoee hos been intentionally feft blomk
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1. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of reaiization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements,
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that company is incapeble of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall.due within a period of one year from the bhalance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is notan assurance as to the future viabifity of the company.
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a
period of ane year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and

when they fall due.

20.
a. There are no unspentamounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than

0ngoing projects requiring a transfer to a fund specified in Schedule Vil to the Companies
Act, 2013 in compiiance with second provisa to sub secticn (5) of section 135 of the said
Act. Accordingly reperting under clause 3(xx)(a) af the order is not applicable for the

period.
b. There are no amounts incurred towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on ongoing

projects for the period.

21, The Company does not have investment in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures and
therefore, company has not prepared consolidated financial staterments. Accardingty

reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the order is not applicabie.

For SINGHAL SUNIL & ASSQOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN  OO2030N

CA SUNIL SINGHAL
PARTNER

M. No. 086904
UDIN - 22086904ANGIPD7922

Date : 19" July, 2022
Place : New Defhij

106, Laxman Palace, 19 Veer Savarkar Block, Shakarpur, Dalhi - 110 892
Phona / Fax: +81-11-4244 4225, 2202 1201, Moblle; +91- 98102 91779, 99589 07329
Emall: sunil singhal.cag@igmall_com, singhat.sunil. B8@gmail.com, Website.: www. casunilsinghal.com
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT OF IRCON DAVANAGERE HIGHWAY
LIMITED FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31° MARCH, 2022

Report an the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Campanies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls aver financial reporting of IRCON DAVANAGERE
HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED (“the Campany”) as of March 31st 2022 in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
hased on, “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the 2ssential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Contrels Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of india {ICAl). These responsibilities incfude the design, implementation and maintenance cof
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to campany’s policies, the safeguarding cf its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and cempieteness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliakle financial information, as required under the

Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our respansibility is to express an epinion on the Company’s internai financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Cantrels Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing prescribed under section 143{10} of the Campanies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial contrels, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements anc plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasanable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
contrals over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
he! financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
@l controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
mgsdnd evaivating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the

105, Laxman Palace, 19 Vaar Savarkar Block, Shakarpur, Delhi - 110 0492
Phone / Fax: +91-11-4244 4225, 2202 12¢1, Mobille: +81- 58102 D1779, 885808 07329

Email: sunil.singhal.ca@grmail.com, singhal.suni.28@gmail.com, Wabsits.: www. casuniisinghal.com
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generaily accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that {1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding preventicn or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the

financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Beczause of the inherent limitations of internal financial cantrols aver financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of contrals, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial contrals over financiai reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financiai reporting may become inadeguate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our infarmation and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal firancial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls cver financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2022, “based on the internal contro! over financial reperting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financizl Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India”.

For SINGHAL SUNIL & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN  00BO30ON ‘e & A g0

Al ez}

CA SUNIL SINGHAL

PARTNER

M. No. 086904 Date 19th July, 2022
22086904ANGIPDTIZ2 Place—; Naw Delhi

oDIN™—™22

105, Laxman Palace, 19 Veer Savarkar Block, Shakarpus, Dalhi - 110 092
_ Phone { Fax: +81-11-4244 4225, 2202 1201, Mobile: +91- 98102 91779, 99588 07325
Email: sunil.singhal.ca@gmaill com, singhal.sunil. 88@gmail.com, Webaite.: www.casunilsinghal.com
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TRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL2017GOI317401
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st March 2022

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars Note No. As at 31st March 2022 As at Mst March 2021
. [ASSETS
1 [Non-current assets
(#) Property, Plant and equipment i 0.38 047
() Financial Assels
Other financial assets 4 45,996.52 38,568.27
() Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 5 6.88
‘Tatul Non-Current Assets 45,996.90 38,575.32
2 |Current Assels
(a) Financial Assets i}
(1) Trade Receivables 6.1 3.446.88 418291
(ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 6.2 509.87 1,541.07
(iii) Bank Balances other than (ii) above 6.3 2,646.00 2 646,00
(iiii) Other financial nssets 6.4 4,174, 71 7.837.76
(b} Current Tax Assets (Net) 7 19918 S18.27
{c) Other Current Assets X 4.903.52 4,743 66
Tatal Current Assets 15,940.16 21,409.07
Taotal Assets 41,937.06 61,044.99

II. [EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1 [Equity
{a} Equity Share Capital ] 17,300.00 16,405.00
(b} Other Equity 10 2392.23 419.56
Total Equity 1969223 _16,824.56
2 |Linbilitics
() [Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities 11
(i) Borrowings 111 36,404.65 33,855.15
(i) Other financial liabilitics 11.2 12.19 =
(b) Other Nan-Current Liabilities - =
Total Non-Current Liabilities 36,416.84 13,855.15
(ii) |Current liabilities
(4) Financial Liahilities 12
(1} Borrowings 124 1, RR4.00 1, 884.00
(i) Trade payables 122
- Micra, Small and Medium Enterprises - -
- Others 161241 5,656.61
(it} Other Financial Liabilities 13 103.56 1,676.30
(b) Other Current Liabilitics 14 T0.36 148.37
(c) Provisions 14{A) 157.36
(d)  Current Tax liability (Net)
Total Current Liabilities 5582?,99 9.365.24
Total Equity and Liabilities 61,937.06 60,044.99
11 [Summary of Significant Accounting policies 1-2
IV, Notes forming pert of financial smtements 3-39
As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Boar Directors

7

Mugu u Gowda  Masood
Direetor Director
DIN-08517013 DIN-09008

For Singhal Sunil & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN . DOBO3ON

NEW DELHI
FRN-08030N ./7 u@c}f
L
uda eh Mandal deep Baisoya
Hanumanthgouda Patil
Partner Chief Exceutive Officer  Chief Financial Officer  Compiny Secretary

M. No. (Ra%i{d

Place : New Delhi
Date : 17-05-2022

UDIN- 2202 Y AT LI TLHA 20
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IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL2017GO1317401
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31st March 2022

(Rs.in Lacs)

Vi o For the period ended For the period ended
L RATEIATY Mol st March 2022 3I1st March 2021

. JRevenue:

|Revenue from operations 15 797.76 19.306.31
Il |Other income 16 3717332 89.42
. Total Income (1+11) 4.571.08 19,395.73
1V, |Expenses:
Project Expenses 17 903.48 16.556.69
Employee benefits expenses 18 63.13 44.46
Finance costs 19 2,708.78 2,706.09
Depreciati i and impai 20 0.24 0.13
Other Expenses 17 58.55 1.49
Total Expenses (IV), 3,734.18 19,308.86
V. |Profit Before exeeptional items and Tax (I - 1V) R36.90 R6.87

VI |Exeeptional items

VIL |Profit before tax {V + V1) #36.90 86,87

V1L | Tax expenses: 3
(1) Current tax

- For the Period 243.35 15.26

- For carlier years (net) - 001

(2) Deferved tax (net) 685 .88

Total Tax Expense 250.23 22.13

I} |Profit for the period from continuing operation (VI - VIIT) 586.67 64.74

X |Other Comprehensive Incame
A (i) Ttems that will nat be reclassified o profit or loss
(i} Income Tax relating to Items that will not be reclassificd to profit o =

or loss

B. (i} Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss = v
(11} Income Tax refating o tems that will be reclassified to profit or = -

loss

X1 Total Comprehensive Income for the period (1X +X) (Comprising 586.67 6474
profit and other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax)

X1 |Eamings Per Equity Share:
(For Conlinuing Operation)
(1) Basic 21 0.35 0.04
(2) Diluted 0.35 0.04
Face Value Per Equity Share 100 10,00

X | v of Significant Accounting policics 1-2

NIV [Notwes forming part of fi il 3-39

As per our Report of even date attached For and on behalf of Board

Fur Singhal Sunil & Associutes Mugunthan Bpju Gowda Maso mad

Chartered Accountan) Dircctor Director
FRN : 008030N DIN-0B517013 DIN-O900RS553
./I_'-J
Ir‘Clﬁ' =
i
C nil Signhal Nagifigogda Mandal Pradeep Baisoyn
Hanumanthgouda Patil
Pariner Chiel Exccutive Officer Chief Financial Officer Company Sccretary

M. No, 086904

Place : New Delhi
Date : 17-05-2022

UDIN: 20 0QETOU N TLT T-Yqre
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IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U4S50DL2Z0N TG 01317401
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 3181 Maych 2012

(Rs. in Lucs)

Particulars As at 315t March 2022 As al 315t March 2021

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit befure tusution B3 [T
Adjustment for &
Interest Incame 13.770.18 W7 2n
Dreprecution. amortizabon and mpawment 024 LR K]
Interest Expenses and Other Finance Cost 208 74 20574
Operating Profit hefure Current Non-Current Assers ani | (1] (224.25) 275582
Adljusiment Tor:
Decrease / (Inerease) in Trade Receivables T3 (3,390,890
Decrease | ilncreasey in Other Non Current Financial Assets (7428 26} (131193 4y
Deerease /i Inereasey in Other Current Financial Assels 543259 RU77.39
Decrease / (Inerease) i Other Current Assois (21K 1,393,494
|Dcﬂr.'::s: HMlnereasey m Current Loans - 5
(Decrease) | Increase i Trode Povables (20 200 32074
{Deercased ! Increase in Other Current Financial Liabilities 01344 94) ) 3R
(Drecrense) ! Increass in Other Non Corrent Frnancal Liabilitics 1219
(Deerease (Increase in Other Current Liabilites 7935 {3,255 1
Total of Working Capital Chanses 2 (£ W B [4.857.44)
Cash gencrated from operation (1+2) (5.,0H15.3%) {2.,101,92)
Income Tax Padinet of refund) 7574 IEERL
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (EY] (4,929.65) (1 956.84)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Propery. Plant and Equipment mcludmg CWIP {145
Purchase of Intangible Assers
Purchase ' Procecds of Proper:. Plan and Equipmen = -
Imeres Recerved U Y7069
Dividend Recenad - -
Imvestmen| i Deposiis - PR T
{hmvesimenty / Matuniy of Banb, Deposits (having matuniy of more than 3 months| = -
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B 2,000,012 (2.548.31)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loan From [RCON - (2052200
Loan From IRCON (UnSecured) 12310 60 2.6
Loan From PNB L34y 3309315
Equity Shares issued during the year KOS 0 -
Quasi Equity From IRCON 1386001
Pavinem 1o DIPAM for Buy Back of Shares - -
Inter “epenses and Oiher Finanee Cost (Rl (RO
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (1%} LH9R.20 551708
Elleet of Exchange dilferences on translation of Forcign Carrency Cash & Cash Equinalents {m - -
NET INCREASE/| DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT (AFBHCHY (1.031.20) 1,321.90
Components of Cash Flow
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (OPENING)* {E} L3417 2197
Cash Balanees - -
Balance with Banhs

— O currcnt accounts 139807 167

— Flaxi Deposits with original matrity of less than 3 months 143,000 21750
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT (CLOSING) * {Fy SDYNT AT
Cash Bakinces -
Balance with Banks

= O carrent nccounis MK RT 13Uk 0T

— Flexi Deposits with original matrity of 1ss than 3 months - 14300
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT (F-E} (103120 1,321,590

* Earmarked funds
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TRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- L45500D L2001 7GO3 7401
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31st March 2022

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities as on 315t March 2022

(Rs. in Loes)

Interest on
Interest on IRCON PNB Loan &
| Particulars Loas From IRCON | Lonn From BNB. |, NiAL
Advance
|Balance as at 1st April, 2021 2,646.00 33,093.15 - 223.45
Cash Dows:
-Hepayments - (1.884.20) 20803 (2.,72330)
-Procecds 1,230.00 3,203.69 208.93 249985
|Balance at 31st March 2022 387600 34,412.64 -
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activilies as on 315t March 2021
Interest on
i 4 Interest on IRCON PNH Loan &
Particulars Loan From IRCON Loaa From PNS Loan NHAL
Advance
|Balance as at Ist April,2020 26,922.00 - - 44771
(Cash Mlows:
|-Repayments 2692200 - (1,560.6K) (1,120.32)
-Proceeds 264600 33,003,15 1 869,68 K605
|Balance at 308t March. 2021 2.646.00 31.093.13 - 22144

Mote; I. Cash fows are reporied using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before Lix is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or aceruals of past or future cash reecipls or payments. The

cash Mlows from operating, investing and linancing activitics of the Company are segregated hased on the nvailable information

2. Effeetive April 1,2017, the company has adopted the amendment to Ind-AS 7, which require the entities 1o provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in lisbilitics ansing from financing
activities, including hath changes arising from cash fows and non-cash changes, suggesting inclusion of a reconciliation hetween the opening and elosing halances in the balance sheet for habilities ansing from lnancing aclivities, 1o

meel the discl q - The ads af 4
3. Figures in brackets reprosent outilow of cash,
4. Figures of the previous year have been

d / recasied

CCRssAry,

As per our Report of even date aitached

For Singhal Sunll & Ass (1
Chartered Aceountants
N : DDEOION

Partmer
M. Mo, 0E6304

Place : New Delhi
Date ; 17-05-2022

N 20R6GoYAILT TLU A 20

did not have any materml olteet on the Anoncial statemenis.
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Chief Executive Offic
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Direcior
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Chif Financial Officer

Priddecp Baisoya

Company Secretary




TRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
C1N- U4S50001. 201 76317400
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY AS AT J1st MARCH 2012

A- Equity share eaplinl

(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars

"Ralance af the
ey loning

of the Reporting
Perind™

Changes due in Prior
Period Errors

Restated Balance at the
beginaing of the
Reparting Period

Issued during the
year

Shares buy back

during the year

Balance al the end of|
Reporting Period

Balanes as ut March 31, 2021

Balanee as ar March 31, 2022

16,405.00

16,405.00

16,405.00 -

16,405.00 #95.00

16,405.00

17,300.00

B. Other Equity

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particolars

Reserve & Surplus

Total

General Reserves

Retaloed Earnlngs

Caplial Hedemption

Hoeres Quasl Equity

Balance as al April 1. 2020

35481

35482

Changes in sccounting palicy or prios perod ermors,

Restated balance at the 1st April 2020

5481

A54.81

Profil for the year

64,74

474

(Uther Comprehensive Income

419,56

414.5h

Remeasurnent of Defined Ronefit Plans

Foreign Exchangs trarslation difenciee

Tatal Comprehensive Income for the period

Buy Back of Equity Shares

419,56/

41956

Less - Payment of Fev for increase in Authorised
Capital

Less : Paymment for By Back of Shares

Less - Dividends Paid

Less = Dividend Distribistion Tax

Less: Bais [ssue

Malarice as at March 31, 2021

419.56

Changes 1n nccourting policy or prios peniod errors

Restated halance at the st April 2021

419,55

419,56

I"rofit for th year

5B6.67

5Rb.67

(Other Comprehensive Income

106,23

1,006.23

Remeasirment of Defined Benelil Plans

Forcign Exchange manslation difference

Total Compretiensive Incame for the period

1.006.23

Receven dung the year

1.386.00)

Buy Back of Equity Shares

Less - Paymient of Foe for incrense b Alithorised
[ apatal

Less : Payment Tor Buy Back of Shares

Less © Divadenids Pod

Less - Dividend Distribulion Tax

Less: Bomus Issue

Bulance as ut 313t March 2022

1,386,00]

1,392.23

As per our Report of even date altached

Parner
M. No. DRG0

Place - Now [helh
Date . 17052022

w29 08690 ASLT LM T20

For and on hehall of Board 9 (rcetors

g [oju Gowda
Dhrecton
DINAORSITONY

Chief Bxecutive (fficer
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Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022,

I. Corporate Information

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited (IDHHL) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ircon International
Limited domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of companies Act 2013 applicable in
India. The company came into existence when, Ircon International Limited has been awarded the work of
Six-Laning of Davanagere — Haveri from km 260+000 to km 338+923 of NH-48 (Old NH-4) in the state
of Karnataka to be executed as Hybrid Annuity Project on DBOT Annuity Pattern under NHDP Phase —
V in accordance with the terms and conditions in the agreement with National Highway Authority of India
(NHAT) dated 19-06-2017. In pursuant to the provisions of *Request for Proposal’, the selected bidder
“Ircon International Limited” has formed a Special Purpose Vehicle (SPV) named Ircon Davanagere
Haveri Highway Limited (IDHHL) as wholly owned subsidiary and incorporated under Companies Act,
2013 on 11th May 2017. Accordingly, SPV has signed the Concession Agreement with NHAI on 19th
June 2017. In terms of the said agreement, IDHHL has an obligation to complete construction of the project
of Six laning of Da vanagere Haveri section and to keep the project assets in proper working condition
including all projects assets whose lives have expired. Total Project cost is Rs 1177 crore (i.e. Bid Project
cost). 40% of the Bid Project cost, adjusted for Price Index Multiple, shall and due and payable to the
Concessionaire (IDHHL) in 5 equal instalments of 8% each during the construction period. The remaining
Bid Project cost, adjusted for Price Index Multiple, shall be due and payable in 30 biannual instalments
commencing from the 180th day of COD in accordance with the Provisions of clause 23.6 of the agreement
which is Annuity payments during Operation Period. The Project is under Annuity pattern and will be
under operation with the IDHHL for 15 years from the Commercial operational Date (COD). The
payments of the same. under Annuity model will be payable at the achievement of specific milestone as
per the agreement.

NHAI vide its letter dated 19-07-2021 has de-scoped the work on main carriageway of 6.880 Kms ,service
road for a length of 49.848 Kms and project facilities (14 Nos. of Bus bays and Bus Shelters,2 Nos. of
Truck Lay Byes and 1 Rest Area) . Accordingly Bid Project cost has been reduced from 1177 crore to Rs
909.21 crore and company has received Provisional Completion certificate with effect from May 28,
2021.The registered office of the company located at C-4, District Centre, Saket, and New Delhi - 110017.

The presentation and functional currency of the company is Indian Rupees (INR). Figures in financial
statements are presented in lakhs, by rounding off upto two decimals except for per share data and as
otherwise stated.

The standalone financial statements are approved for issue by the company's Board of Directors in their
meeting held on 17.05.2022,

2. Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133
of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules. 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule III to
the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule I11), as applicable to the financial statements,

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis following accrual system of
accounting. The Company has adopted the historical cost basis for assets and liabilities, except for the
following assets and liabilities which have been measured at fair value:

. Provisions, where the effect of time value of money is material are measured at present value
. Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
® Defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits

2.2
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Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2022,

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements
are as given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in

the financial statements.

2.2.1 Current vs non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current

classification.
An asset is treated as current when it is:

e Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

s Held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle aliability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

The Company classifies all other assets as non-current.
A liability is current when:

It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settledwithin twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for atleast twelve months

after the reporting period
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

2.2.2 Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and Initial Measurement

Property. plant and equipment is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of each item can be measured reliably.
Property, plant and equipment are initially stated at their cost,

Cost of asset includes

a) Purchase price, net of any trade discount and rebates

b) Borrowing cost if capitalization criteria is met’

¢) Cost directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets which incurred in bringing asset to its
working condition for the intended use

d) Incidental expenditure during the construction period is capitalized as part of the indirect
construction cost to the extent the expenditure is directly related to construction or is incidental

thereto.
e) Present value of the estimated costs of dismantling & removing the items & restoring the site
on which it is located if recognition criteria are met.
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Freehold land is carried at historical cost.

Subsequent measurement

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost net of accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent expenditure is capitalized if it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company and cost of
the expenditure can be measured reliably.

Cost of replacement, major inspection. repair of significant parts and borrowing costs for long-term
construction projects are capitalized if the recognition criteria are met.

The machinery spares are capitalized if recognition criteria are met.

Depreciation and useful lives

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, excluding freehold land is provided on straight line
basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as specified in schedule 1I of the Companies act,

2013.
Particulars Useful lives (Years)
Building/flats residential/non-residential 60
Plant and Machinery 8-15
Survey instruments 10
Computers 3-6
Office Equipment’s S
Furniture and fixtures 10
Caravans, Camps and temporary shed 3-5
Vehicles 8-10

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant and equipment during the period is
charged on pro-rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for use/disposed

Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is depreciated separately if the cost of part is
significant in relation to the total cost of the item and useful life of that part is different from the
useful life of remaining asset.

Property plant and equipment acquired during the period, individually costing up to Rs. 5000/~ are
fully depreciated, by keeping Re. | as token value for identification. However, Mobile phones
provided to employees are charged to statement of profit and loss irrespective of its value.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted prospectively. if appropriate. “Ordinarily, the residual value of an asset is up to 5% of the
original cost of the asset” as specified in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when

the asset is derecognized. el

2.2.3 Capital work in progress
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Capital work-in-progress represents expenditure incurred in respect of capital projects and are carried
at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any.

2.2.4 Investment properties

Recagnition and initial measurement

Investment Property is recognized when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the property will flow to the company and the cost of property can be measured reliably. Investment
property comprises completed property, property under construction and property held under a lease
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both, rather than for sale in the ordinary
course of business or for use in production or administrative functions. Investment properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.

Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of other consideration given to
acquire an asset at the time of its acquisition or construction or, where applicable, the amount
attributed to that asset when initially recognized in accordance with the specific requirements of other
Ind AS.

Subsequent measurement and depreciation

[nvestment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
loss, if any.

Subsequent cost is added if recognition criteria is met. The Company depreciates building component
of investment property on straight line basis over 60 years from the date of original purchase/
completion of construction. Freehold land and property under construction is not depreciated.

Leasehold land acquired on perpetual lease is not amortized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of investment property are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Though the Company measures investment property using cost-based measurement, the fair value of
investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair value determined based on an annual evaluation
performed by an accredited external independent valuer applying valuation model acceptable
internationally.

Derecognition

[nvestment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal.
The difference between the net disposal proceeds if any and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognised in statement of profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

2.2.5 Intangible assets

Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the future economic benefits that are
attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost comprises
purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly aftributable cost of
bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Internally generated intangibles,
excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected
in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. Intangible assets
not ready for the intended use on the date of the Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Intangible assets

e
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underdevelopment™

Sh‘bS(’fo{.’.‘Tf measurement and amortization

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Software cost up to Rs. I Lakhs in each case is fully amortized
in the period of purchase, by keeping Rs. | as token value for identification.

The cost of capitalized software is amortized over a period 36 months from the date of its acquisition.

Amortization on additions to/deductions from Intangible Assets during the period is charged on pro-
rata basis from/up to the date on which the asset is available for use/disposed

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting period and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Derecognition

An intangible asset shall be derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds if any and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is de-recognized.

2.2.6 Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses, whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. I any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the
Company estimates the assel’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying
amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount and the impairment loss, including impairment on inventories
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

[n assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether
there is an indication that previously recognized impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased.
[f such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. The
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount,
nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation. had no
impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior period. Such reversal is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

2.2.7 Inventories

a) Inventories (including scrap) are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes
cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on First in First out (FIFO) basis. Net realisable

60




Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022,

value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

b) Construction work-in-progress is valued at cost till such time the outcome of the job cannot be
ascertained reliably and at lower of cost or realizable value thereafter.

¢) The initial contract expenses on new projects for mobilization are recognized as construction
work-in-progress in the year of incidence, and pro rata charged to statement of profit and loss of
the project over the period at the same percentage as the stage of completion of the contract as at
the end of reporting period. Site mobilization expenditure to the extent not written off valued at
cost.

d) In Cost Plus contracts, where the cost of all materials, spares and stores not reimbursable as per
the terms of the contract is shown as inventory valued as per (a) above.

e) Loose tools are expensed in the period of purchase.

2.2.8 Revenue recognition

a)

Service concession arrangement

Financial Assets Under Service concession Arrangements (Appendix C to Ind AS 115 — Revenue
from Contracts with Customers)

The Company recognise a financial asset to the extent that it has an unconditional contractual right
to receive cash or another tinancial asset from or at the direction of the grantor (“NHAI™) for the
construction services and Operation & Maintenance services).

Such financial assets are initially measured at fair value i.e. present value and subsequently at amortized
cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Under this method, financial asset will be increased
for the financing element and reduced as and when money is received from grantor

Ind AS 115 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers)
The Company recognizes and measures revenue from construction and Operation & Maintenance
services) in accordance with /nd AS -1135"Revenue from Contracts with Customers”

Company combine the two or more contracts entered into at or near the same time with the same customer
and account for the contracts as a single contract if contracts are negotiated as a package with a single
commercial objective or amount of consideration to be paid in one contract depends on the price or
performance of the other contract or goods or services promised in the contracts are single performance
obligation.

Transaction price (it does not involve significant financing component) is the price which is contractually
agreed with the customer for provision of services. Revenue is measured at the transaction price that is
allocated to the performance obligation and it excludes amounts collected on behalf of third partiesi.e
GST and is adjusted for variable considerations

The nature of Company’s contract gives rise to several types of variable consideration including
escalation and liquidated damages.

Any subsequent change in the transaction pry:’q is'th maLtuuated to the performance obligations in the
contract on the same basis as at contract mc( E! n
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The Company recognizes revenue for variable consideration when it is probable that a significant reversal
in the amount cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. The company estimates the amount of
revenue to be recognized on variable consideration using most likely amount method,

Consequently, amounts allocated to a satisfied performance obligation are recognized as revenue, or as a
reduction of revenue, in the period in which the transaction price changes.

The company satisfies a performance obligation and recognizes the revenue overtime, if any of the
following criteria is met:

a) The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity s
performance as the entity perform

h) The entity’s performance creates or enhances an asset (for example, work in progress)
that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced or

¢) The entity’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the entity and
the entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

For performance obligation satisfied over time. the revenue recognition is done by measuring the
progress, using percentage completion method, towards complete satisfaction of performance obligation.
The progress is measured in terms of a proportion of actual cost incurred to-date, to the total estimated
cosl attributable to the performance obligation. However, where the Company is not be able to reasonably
measure the outcome of a performance obligation, but the Company expects to recover the costs incurred
in satisfying the performance obligation, the Company recognise revenue only to the extent of the costs
incurred until such time that it can reasonably measure the outcome of the performance obligation. A
Cumulative catch up adjustment would be recognized in the period in which entity is able to reasonably
measure its progress.

Performance obligation is measured by applying input method. In the contracts where performance
obligation cannot be measured by input methad, the output method is applied. which faithfully depict the
Company’s performance towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation.

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the
contract scope or contract price,

The accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services added to the
existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing is at the standalone selling price. Services added
that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch up basis, while those that are distinct are
accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if additional services are priced at the
standalone selling price, or as a termination of existing contract and creation of a new contract if not
priced at the standalone selling price.

Contract balances

Contract assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred
to the customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the
customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned
consideration that is conditional

Trade receivables: A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer
to accounting policies of financial assets in section (XX) Financial instruments — initial recognition and

subsequcnl measurement.
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Contract liabilities A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for
which the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer.
If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a
contract liability is recognized when the payment is made. or the payment is due (whichever is earlier).
Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Other income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.
Interest income is recognized using Effective Interest rate method.

Miscellaneous income is recognized when performance obligation is satisfied and right to receive the
income is established as per terms of contract.

2.2.9 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period to get ready for its intended use or
sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to statement
of profit and loss as incurred. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent
regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

2.2.10Taxes
a) Current income Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current tax is
determined as the tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period and is computed in
accordance with relevant tax regulations. Current income tax is recognized in statement of profit and
loss except to the extent it relates to items recognised outside profit or loss in which case it is
recognized outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax
items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate.

Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

b) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is scttled based on 'Laa rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reportmg Jale g
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2.2.11

Deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent it relates to items
recognised outside profit or loss, in which case is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each
reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.

Foreign currencies

e Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency™). The financial
statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also the functional and presentation currency
of the Company.

e Transactions and balances

2.2.12

a)

b)

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange
rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the reporting date are converted to functional
currency using the closing rate (Closing selling rates for liabilities and closing buying rate for
assets). Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical
cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transactions.

Exchange differences arising on settlement of monetary items, or restatement as at reporting date,
at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement
of profit and loss in the period in which they arise. These exchange differences are presented in
the statement of profit and loss on net basis.

Employee benefit

Short-term employee benefits

Employee benefits such as salaries, short term compensated absences. and Performance Related
Pay (PRP) falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-
term employee benefits and undiscounted amount of such benefits are expensed in the statement
of profit and loss in in the period in which the employee renders the related services.

Post-employment benefits and Other Long term Employee Benefits

The Post employee benefits & other long term Employee Benefits are provided by Ircon
International Limited, the Holding C;;mpan as the employees are on the deputation from thc
Holding Company. - O\
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2.2.13Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent include cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term deposits with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of unrestricted cash
and short-term deposits, as defined above as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s
cash management.

2.2.14 Dividend

Annual Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity shareholders is recognized as liability in the
period in which dividend is approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend is recognized as
liability on approval by the Board of Directors, Dividend payable and corresponding tax on dividend
distribution, if any. is recognized directly in equity.

2.2.15  Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities
a) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, considering the risk and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation,

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used,
the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

b) Onerous contracts

An onerous contract is a contract under which the unavoidable costs (i.e., the costs that the
Company cannot avoid because it has the contract) of meeting the obligations under the contract
exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. The unavoidable costs under a
contract reflect the least net cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the cost of
fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties arising from failure to fulfil it. If the Company has a
contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a
provision. However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the
Company recognises any impairment loss that has occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates,

¢) Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation or present obligations that
may but probably will not, require an outflaw of resources embodying economic benefits or the
amount of such obligation cannot be mefsured retiably: When there is possible obligation ora
> \C \ ——
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d)

2.2.16

a)

i)

present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remote. no provision or disclosure is made.

These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are not recognized though are disclosed, where an inflow of economic benefits
is probable,

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period in exchange for
consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (1.e.. the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. and adjusted for any re=measurement of lease liabilities. The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease labilities recognised. initial direct costs
incurred. and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Leasehold land acquired on perpetual lease is not amortized.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost
reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment.

11) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventories) in the period in which the eﬁéj&t’ér con’dﬁ.i@;‘that triggers the payment occurs.
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b)

2.2.17

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. A fter the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the
lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

The Company's lease liabilities are included in financial liabilities

i11) Short term lease and leases of low value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases contracts
including lease of residential premises and offices (i.e.. those leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered
to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the
same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they
are earned.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

a) Financial assets

[nitial recognition and measurement

All Financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus or minus transaction cost that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at
fair value through profit and loss). Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in statement of profit and loss.

Subseguent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

e Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a. The asset is held within a business m
contractual cash flows, and =
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b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cosl
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising
from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade
and other receivables.

e Debt instruments at FVTOCI

A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a. The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling the financial assets, and

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses &
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On derecognition
of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity
to statement of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is
reported as interest income in statement of profit and loss using the EIR method.

e Debt instruments at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet
the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

e Equity instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company
may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes
in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL. There is no recycling
of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
an.cordance with the contract and a]l the cash ﬂows thai lhe entity expects to receive (i.e., all




Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022,

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit
risk exposure:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

b. Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

c. Lease receivables under Ind AS 116

d. Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result
from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115

e. Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

f. Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows *simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

e Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
e  All lease receivables resuliing from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116

The application of simplified approach does not rcquiré the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in
a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial asset. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which
results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head
‘other expenses” in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various
financial instruments is described below:

e Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and lease
receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement
of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until
the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from
the gross carrying amount.

e Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in
the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability.

e Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVOCTI, the
expected credit losses do not reduce the carrying amount in the balance sheet, which
remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise if the asset
was measured at amortised cost is recognised in other comprehensive income as the
*accumulated impairment amount™

The Company does not have apy -purchas

4
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b)

c)

assets, i.e.. financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognized only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expires or it transfers the financial assets and substantially all risks and rewards of the
ownership of the asset.

The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received /
receivable is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings other
financial liabilities etc.

Su b&'eub‘(z’”f measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
e Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
The company has not designated any financial liabilities at FVTPL.

e Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Loans, horrowings, trade pavahles and other financial liabilities

After initial recognition, Loans. borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised
in statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial liubilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified. such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment
to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make
a payment when due in accordance with the terms-of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contracts are recognised initially as a liabi ' "vd\e, adjusted for transaction co/st_g that
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are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured
at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind
AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

d) Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets.
Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. Such changes are evident to
external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which
is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model.
The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment
gains or losses) or interest.

e) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable contractual legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

2.2.18 Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that

is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

e Level | — Quoted (unadjusted) market pri qs\jn.;gé_t};

NEW DE
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Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022,

e Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities, if any. At each
reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities
on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair
value hierarchy as explained above.

Above is the summary of accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.

2.2.19  Non — current asset held for sale

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying
amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly
probable. The sale is considered highly probable only when the asset or disposal group is available
for immediate sale in its present condition, it is unlikely that the sale will be withdrawn, and sale is
expected within one year from the date of the classification. Disposal groups classified as held for
sale are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. Property, plant and
equipment, investment property and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortized once classified
as held for sale. Assets classified as held for sale/distribution are presented separately in the balance
sheet.

If the criteria stated by IND AS 105 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale™ are no longer met, the
disposal group ceases to be classified as held for sale. Non-current asset that ceases to be classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of (i) its carrying amount before the asset was classified as
held for sale. adjusted for depreciation that would have been recognized had that asset not been
classified as held for sale, and (ii) its recoverable amount at the date when the disposal group ceases
to be classified as held for sale. The depreciation reversal adjustment related property, plant and
equipment, investment property and intangible assets is charged to statement of profit and loss in the
period when non-current assets held for sale criteria are no longer met.

2.2.20  Prior Period Adjustment

Errors/omissions discovered in the current year relating to prior periods are treated as immaterial and
adjusted during the current year, if all such errors and omissions in aggregate does not exceed 0.50%
of total operating revenue as per last audited financial statement of the Company.

2.2.21 Significant accounting estimates and judgments

The estimates used in the preparation of the said financial statements are continuously evaluated by
the Company and are based on historical equ:rlencg and various other assumptions and factors

(including expectations of future events)/t lh&ﬁbmpany believes to be reasonable under the
\
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existing circumstances. The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the
reporting date, or that occurred after that date but provide additional evidence about conditions
existing as at the reporting date. Although the Company regularly assesses these estimates, actual
results could differ materially from these estimates - even if the assumptions underlying such
estimates were reasonable when made, if these results differ from historical experience or other
assumptions do not turn out to be substantially accurate. The changes in estimates are recognized in
the financial statements in the period in which they become known.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. Actual results could differ
from these estimates.

a.  Allowances for uncollected trade receivables

Trade receivables do not carry interest and are stated at their nominal values as reduced by
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amount are based on ageing of the receivables
balances and historical experiences. Individual trade receivables are written off when management
deems not be collectible.

b. Contingencies

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims
against the Company. There are certain obligations which managements have concluded based on
all available facts and circumstances are not probable of payment or difficult to quantify reliably
and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in notes Although there can
be no assurance of the final outcome of legal proceedings in which the Company is involved. it is
not expected that such contingencies s will have material effect on its financial position of
probability.

¢. Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provision for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation., based on the Company’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

d. Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in
tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the nature of business
differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such
assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The
Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is
based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of
tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of
interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the
respective domicile of the companies.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits fogether with future tax planning strategies.

N
. i o,
e. Impairment of non financial assets 3;5
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Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales
transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model.

f, Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as
lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.
]

The Company has lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company
applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the
option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement
date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option
to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant
customisation to the leased asset).

2. Revenue recognition

The Company recognizes revenue for a performance obligation satisfied over time after reasonably
estimating its progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance obligation.

The recognition of revenue requires assessments and judgments to be made on changes in work
scope, claims (compensation, rebates etc.) and other payments to the extent performance obligation
is satisfied and they are probable and are capable of being reasonably measured. For the purpose
of making estimates for claims, the company used the available contractual and historical
information. o
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Property, Plant and Equipment

CIN- U45500DL2017GO1317401

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars

Computers

Total

Gross Carrying Amount (At Cost)

At 1 April 2020
Additions
Disposals/Adjustments
Exchange Gain/ Loss
At 31st March 2021
Additions
Disposals/Adjustments
Exchange Gain/ Loss

At 31st March 2022

Depreciation and impairment
At 1 April 2020
Depreciation charge for the year

Impairment
Disposals/Adjustments
Exchange Gain/ Loss

At 31st March 2021
Depreciation charge for the year
Impairment
Disposals/Adjustments
Exchange Gain/ Loss

At 31st March 2022

Net book value
At 31st March 2022
At 31st March 2021

0.42

0.42

0.42

0.42

0.45

0.45

0.87

0.87

0.12

0.12

0.13

0.13

0.25

0.25

0.24

0.24

0.49

0.49

0.38

0.17

0.38
0.17
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4 Other Financial Assets
(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
Contract Assets Considered Good
Financial Asset- Construction Contract 45,962.46 38.542.80
Others

34.06 2547

Security Deposits

Total - Other Financial Assets 45,996.52 38,568.27

Foot Notes:-
I. Financial Assets - Construction contract is the Highway being made by IDHHL under Hybrid Annuity Model

(HAM) (Refer Note 23) /’p\g/ N\
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TRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U4S500D 1201 TGOLI T4
Nates to the Financial Statements for the scar coded 311 March 2022

Financial Assets

Trale Recvivables
(R, in Lacs)
Asat 30st March] Asut 30st Murch
2022 2021

Particulurs

Trude Recuivables
Sevured Considered good
Unsecured Considered good 34 K8 4. 18291
Trade Recenables which have sigmificant merense m eredi nsk
Trade recemables- Credit mpawed

stirment Alluw ance (Allowance for bed and doubifol debis)
Unsecured Considered good

Trade Recen ables which have sigmificam merease m credit nsk
Trade recervables- Credit mpaired

Tutal J440.88 4.182.m

Treade Receivahle Apeing Schedule (As on 31 March 2022)
(Rs. in Locs)

Particulars il
Unhilted Not D Outstuniling for the vear enided Mareh 31, 2022 from the due date of payment ot
H LU L —
= Muore than 3
Luss than & months| & "'nml"'f_l-l -2 years 21-3 yeary ke 5
venr yeurs|
(1) Undispuied Trade reeeivahles — considered good 1003 04 0 1730 59 F0T28 - RNt ]
() Undispuled Trade Roceivables = whach han e sigmficant icrease in
credil sk

() Undssputed Teade Reeeivables — eredit imparred.
(i) Disputed Trode Recennbles considered good

i) Disputed Trade Recenables - which hove sigmificant increase m eredin
rish

Ason 31st Murch 2021-

Particulars Ouistanding for the vear ended March 31, 2021 Trom the due date of payment
Inhi N - ! i
Wikl it Dt Less than & months) S ity J 1-2 vears 2-3 years| More thun 3 Tatal
b Veurs)
fisputed Trade reconahles — i good 347500 - 07 3% 4. 182491

ndispured Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in
credit nsk

() Undisputed Trade Becenvables — credit umpaied
+ Disputed Trade Recen ables considered wood
(1) Dispuled Trade Recen ables - which hive sinilicant increase n credil
risk

iv1) Disputed Trade Reconvables — credit i pared

EW DELHI
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6.3

6.4

IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL201 7GO3 17401
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st Mareh 2022

Cash and Cash equivalents

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars

As at J1st March 2022

As at 31st March 2021

Cash in hand
Balances with banks:
Earmarked Funds

— On current accounts 509.87 1.398.07
— Flexi Accounts i “

— Flexi Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months*¥ B 143.00
Total 509.87 1,541.07

Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash equivalent

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars

As at 31st March 2022

As at 31st March 2021

Other Bank Balances
— Deposits with original
maturity of more than 3

2 6¢ 2.646.0(
months but less than 12 646.00 646.00
months

Total 2,646.00 2,646.00

Other Financial Assets
(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021
a) Considered Good
Security Deposits

- Others 0.63 0.63
Interest Accrued on FDR - 019
Other Recoverable 0.38 042
Contract Assets:
Financial Asset- Construction Contract 240397 7.836.52
Interest Recoverable on Financial Assets 1.769.73
Total - Other Financial 4.174.71 7.837.76
Assets - Good
Grand Total - Other Financial Others 4.174.71 7,837.76

Foot Notes:-

Financial Assets - Construction contract is the Highway being made by

.\T}“{“ j N
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IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022

Current Tax Assets (Net)

CIN- U45500DL2017GOI317401

{Rs, in Laes)

As at 31st March

As at 31st March

Particulars 1022 2021
Taxes Paid including TDS & Advance Tax (Net of Provision for Tax) 199.18 518.27
Current tax Assets (Net) 199.18 518.27

Other Current Assets

(Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars

As at 31st March
2022

As at 31st March
2021

Unsecured : considered good

a) Advances Other than Capital Advances

Advance Recoverable from
- Sales Tax (including TDS)
Less : Deposited under Protest
- Value Added Tax
- Goods & Services Tax
- Service Tax input credit
Interest Accrued on Income Tax Refund

Advances to Contractors against material and machinery

Advances to Contractors. Suppliers and Others - Related Party

4926 10

4.721.28

2046

Total - Advances Other than Capital Advances

4,926.10

4.741.74

b) Others

Prepawd Expenses

3742

1,92

Total - Others

1.92

37.42

¢) Interest Acerued but not due

[On Mobilisation advance to IRCON

d) Considered Doubtful

Advances to Contractors, Suppliers and Others
Sales Tax (including TDS)

Others

Value Added Tax

Less: Impairment allowance for doubtful advances

Total - Interest Acerued but not due

Grand Total

4,963.52 |

4,743.66
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IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- V4550001200 7GO13 7401
MNates 1o the Financial Statements for the perind ended 315t March 2022

Equity Share capital {Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars As at Jist March 2022 As at 3 st March 2021

Authorised share capital

21,70, 50.000 Equay shares of Rs 10 cach 21708 2LT0500
21705 M) 3,705 (0

Issued Subscribed and Puid up Capital

173000,k K) Equity shares of Rs 10 cach-fully pad 17 30040 L6 403 ()

Total 730040 16,403 0}

Pramater’s shareholding
As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Shares held by Promaoter at the end of the period / year % change during
the period f vear

S.No Promoter Name®
No. of shares %o of total shares

| frcon Int 'l.||n|:cd-HoLdinEl"nmE.'mv I_I-I.%CONI 17,301, 001{H0i 1041001175 TR

As at March 31, 2021
Particulars Shares held by Promoter at the end of the perind / year %o change during
the period / vear

S0 Foameler Name No. of shares % of total shares
] Ircon Intematsonal Linnted- Holding Company (IRCON) 165,400, 51D 1D M) ™ 1140
Details of shaveholders holding in the company
As At 315t March 2022 As at 315t March 2021
Name of the shareholder ing i
: Mow of Suara| e HoMIAg in the No. of Share] % holding in the class|
class|
Treon Inermational Limited- Holding Compony (IRCON) 17 300,01 00| 1M 16 310,540 600 14
Total 17, 30,060,000 11H} 16,40,50.000 100

Aggregate no, of equity shares issued s bonus, shares issued for consideration other than cash amd shares bought back during the period of five vears immediately preceding the
reporting date

e S Atatain ME.Er;; 31 March 2021] 31 March 202 31 March 2019 Asat 31 March 2018
No. of Share| No. of Share| No. of Share Mo, of Share No. of Share|
Equity shares allotied other than cash - - - - 5
Equity shares issued as bonus shares - - - - 2
Equity shares Buy Back - - = - =
Totl - - - - E

Terms / Rights artached 10 Equity Shares :

() Yating
The Company has only one class ol equiny shares hoving a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Ench holder of equity share is entnled o one vote per share.

(b1 Liguidation
I the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders ol equity shares will be eotitled 1o teceive remaining assets of the Compans . after distnbution of all preferential amounts. The disinl will be in propodt
1oy the number of cquity shares held by the sharcholders

eh D ubend

The dividend proposed by the Board of Dircetors 15 subjeet to the approval of the sharcholders in ansuing Annual General Meeting

Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and share capital outstanding at the beginning and at the end of (he vear
(Rs. in Lacs)

As at 31st March 2022 As at Jist March 2021
Particulars
No of shares| Rs in Lacs] No of shares Rs in Lacs|
~ 3

IsswediSubscribed and Paid up equiy Capital owstanding at the 16.40.50,000 16.405.00 16.40.30.000 16.405 110
beginning of the vear

Add: Shares lssued dunng the veur BOS0 00 U500 = =
Less: Shares Buy Back duning the s ear - - - -
| Fsgucd‘.'bubscnbcd and Paid up cguity Capital outstanding at the 17.30.00.000 . 16.40,50000 16.405.00
end of the vear -
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IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL2017GO1317401
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022

10 Other Equity
(Rs. in Lacs)

7 As at 31st Marceh As at 31st March
Particulars 2022

2021

(a) Retained Earnings
Opening Balance 419.56 354.82
Add: Transfer from surplus in statement of profit and loss 586.67 64.74

Closing Balance 1,006.23 419.56

(b) Quasi Equity (Loan From Ircon)
Opening Balance - -
Received During the year 1.386.00 -

C.Iosing Balance 1,386.00 -

(¢) Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance =
Add: Transfer for Buy Back of Equity Shares - =

Closing Balance

(d) Items of other comprehensive income

Opening Balance
Foreign Currency Translation (net of tax) - -

Closing Balance
Grand Total 2,392.23 419.56

Nature and Purpose of Other Reserves:

(a) Retained Earnings
Retained Earnings represents the undistributed profits of the Company.
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IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U4S500DL.2017G 01317401
Notes to the Finaneiol Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022

Finaneinl Liabilities (Non Current)

1.1 Borrowings

1.z

121

|Rs. in Lacs)

Particutars Asat 31st March|  As at 315t March|
ik 2022 2021

Secured:

Loan from Bank

#Loan Irom Punjab National Bank** 32,528 05 3120215

L n-Secured:

[I..ann from Holding Campanyilreon Intemational Limuted)® 3,876.00 2,646.00

lTnmI 36.404.65 33855.18

#The Company has apphed rerm loan for the purpose for which loans were chiamned

Notes :

Ln-Secured Loans

* Terms & Conditions of Loan from Holding Company|lreon International Limited)

1. Sanction := 26,46 Crores

(1) Interest rate 1o be charged on loan shall be ar SB1 ane year MCLR rate prevailing from nme o nme plus 0.50%
{11} Duranon of the Loan Disbursement wonld be a penod of & manth from the date of signing this sgreement.

(i) Unsecured loan shall be repaid in 2 8 yvears starting after 12 years from COD i structured half yearly mstallments
(v} Interest 1o be caloulated on monthly rest basis and payable i hall veary imstalmems.

2, Sanction := 25.00 Crorves

(1) Interest rate 1o be charged on the loan shall be at PNB [-month MCLE +10.25% (as applicable from nme o hiime),

(i) Duration of Loan Dishursement would be a period of | vear from the dme of signing of pgreement

(#1) Unsccured Loan shall be repaid in 2 S vears starting after 12 vears from COD or repayment of full term loan of senior lender, whichever is earlier in structured
halfeyearly instalments

(1) Interest to be calculated on monthly rem basi

** Terms & Conditions of Loan from Punjab National Bank

Sanction = 80276 Crores

(1) Interest rate to be charged on loan shall be ar 1 Month MULR (6. 70 -Sep202 1 0. 30% 1 & 7.00%p a. presently subject o change from tme tot ime

{10y Repayment penod will be 10 vears and 6 momhs (Startung wee { 24.04 202 | and last instalment on 24.07 2021)

{1i0) Term loan shall be repad in 42 Croarterly mstalments starmng from 24th Apnl 2021

(iv) Interest shall be paid as and when dus

(v} Term Loan to be backed by uncondinonal & wrevocable corporate ¢ of MYs Trcon Int | Lumated (rated CARE AAA) upto receipt of [st annnty
from NHALor COD plus 180 davs whichever is later

(vi) The Tean shall be secured hy-

(a} First charge by way of hypothecanon of all fixed asset’ movable assets of the company| Other than projeet assers: Exeept those acquired out of the free Now of the
company in operation phase) and being informed from nme o nme o lender

() First charge on the book dehis of the project Operanng cash flow, Receivables Commission, Revenues of whatsozver natre and wherever ansing, Present and
furure gibles goodwill and lled capitaliPresent and furee)

(e A first charge on progects bank aceountmcluding but not lmited to the escrow account opened in designated bank.where all cash inflow from the project shall be
deposited and proceeds shall be unhised im 2 manner and pronty to be deaided by lender and investors,

{d) Assignment of all company’s nights and interest under all the agreement related to project letter of creditiif any), and guarantee and performance bond provided by
any pamy for any contract related to the project in favor of borrower.

{e) Sub I executed by autheney on behalf of lender for the faciliny

() Assignment of all applhcable msurance policies

) Company is not required w-submit any quanerly sutement 4s per sancnoned rerms

Other Financial Liabilities
(Rs. in Laes)
| As at 3ist March|  As at 31st March)
Particulars :D:;J 2021
Deposits, Retention money and Money Withheld 1219 -
Total 12.19 -
Financial Linbilities {Current)
Borrowings
{Rs. in Lacs)
seul As at 31st March|  As at 315t March|
II‘ 1022 2021
Secured
Loan from Bank
ACurrent matunines of long- term debt 1.884.00 1.884.00)
| Total 135400 1.854.00 |
#The Company has appliad term loan for the purpose for which loans were obtmined and for terms’ ition refer 111
AT ==
SZaveri oy
Ve o\207 > [N
/d=pa o)
Cw
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IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED

CIN- U45500DL201 7GO1317401
Notes (o (he Financlal Statements for the year ended 31t March 2072

Trade Payahles

Hs. In Lacs}

Particulars

As at st March|  As at 35 March]
2022 2021

Micro, Small & Medium Enterpriscs (Refer Note no. 31
(Others:

{a) Contractor & Supplicrs

{b} Helated Partics

5,656.61

361241

Total

361241 5.656.61

Trade payables Ageing Schedule

Particulars

Linbilled

Outstanding for the vear ended March 31, 2022 fram the due date of
payment

Not Due
More than 3
Lass than | 1-2 year 1-3 years

year yeurs

Total

Tonal putstanding dues of niero emerprises and smoll enerpnses

Total ounstanding dues of creditors other than micra enterpriscs and smal|
enlerpirises

1.670.36 1,235.85 T06.20 -

461241

Disputed dues of micro enterprises and snwll enterprises

Dispated dues of ereditors other than nicrn enterprises and small enterprises

Particalars

Unbilled

e due date of

Outstunding for the year ended March 31, 2021 from

Naot Due

Less than 1 Maore than 3
yéir 1-2 year vears

Total

Total outstunding dues of micro everprises ond small enterprises

Total oonstanding dues of credilors other than micro emerprises and small
calerprises

455041 T, 20

5,656.61

Dispuited dues of micro enterprises snd sma | enterpriscs

Disputed dues of creditors ciber than inicro enerprises and small enterprises

Other Finuncial Linbilities

| Particulars

{Hs. in Lacs)
As at 315t March

As al 3st March
2022 Pl

Interest acerial on Bormowmg®
Interest Payible on Advance from Clicit
Other Puyables (mcluding Stall Payable)

- 12345

103.E6 1,452.85

14(4)

Lotal

103,86 1,676.30

#Plewse refer Note= 111 for details
Other Current Linbilitics

(Rs. in Laes)

Particalars

As at 31st March|
2021

a) Comtract Linbiliry
Advance from chents

- Luss: Doposits under prolest
Advance contract reccipls

b Others

Statutory ducs

036 148.37

Total

70.36 148.37

Nore
a) Statutory dues includes liability for Goods and Service Tax (G5T) and olher statutory dues.

Provisions

(Rs, In Lacs)

Particulars

Amoun|

Provision for Onerous Contract®
As at Dl-April 2021

Current

Non Current

Prowision made during the year
Less: Utilized during the yvear
Less: Write Back Dunng the year
(Exchange GainpLoss

Unwinding of Discoun

157.36

As at 31-March 2022

157.36

Currem
Non Curpert!

157.36

*The company has n contract where total contract cost exceeds the total contrict revemie. In such situstion as per Ind AS 115 and Tnd A5 37, The company has to provid

these losses.
made by the management.
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IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED

CIN- U45500DL201TGOIINT401

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022

Revenue from operations

(Rs. in Lacs)

For the period ended

For the period ended

Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Construction Contract revenue under SCA {Refer Note 23) 797.76 1930631
Other Revenue

- Other Operating Revenue - -
Total 797.76 19,306.31

Other Income

(Rs. in Lacs)

Bt For the period ended For the period ended
31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Interest Income :
Interest income eamed on mobilisaton advances
Bank Interest Gross 79.53 36.52
Interest on [ncome Tax Refund - 52.85
Interest on Staff Advance - 0.05
Other Miscelleous Income 314
Interest Income On FA 1,690.65
Total 3,773.32 89.42
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- IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- LASS0D L2 7GOLE 7400
Notes (o the Financial Statcments for the scar ended 315t March 2022

17 Project amd Oher Expenses
(Rs. in Lacs)

Project Expenses Oiher Expenses
Particulars Fuot Note For the perind ended For the sear cded) Fur the period ended For the year ended
3151 March 2022 315t March 2021 315t March 2022 315t March 2021
Waork Expenscs 735 16,345 35 - =,
12294
Cperation and Momtenance Expenditure .
Inspection. Gen Technical Investigntion & Hil S 15 24 - i
Sunvey Exp. Exc
Repous and Maimenanes of Machinen - - 5
Rent - Non-resdcnial n47 275 052 -
Power. Elecincy and Water charges 1475 143 7 ¥
Insurance 1972 54.78 Jo.14 -
Travelling & copvevance - (A L] 49 »
Printing & stationer (IR IR 014 -
Postage. whephone & whes s - - =
Legal & Profcssional charges 113 LE T80 (2]
Busincss promotion - = - 1
Write-olT of
- Bad debis - - - -
- Bad advonces - - - -
- Bad asseis - - i -
Luss on sale of Asscls'Stores - - - =
Anditors remuncration 1) - = 1.3% 125
Advenisement & publici - 5 142 -
Teaining & Recradumen - - - -
Miscellancous cxpenses - nps 030
(Corporale Oherheads
Pronassons | Addition - Write Back)
| Refer Nowe 10y
Prowassons Unilised 137,36
Tutal 3N 16, 556,64 SH.5S 1.49
(i) Pavment to Statutory Awditors: {Bs,in Lucs)
Particulars For the period ended31st March 2022 For the year ended 3151 March 2021
i} Amdil Foe = current sear n7s 1aE
ihi Limited Resiow Foes -0 1130
ict Tax Audit Fees - carrent year [k} 15
idy Ceridication Foes nis
Tatal | [ 1.25
18 loyee Bemune ration and Benelits iRs, in Lacs)
For the period ended Fur the year ended
315t March 2012 31st March 2021
Farticalars Foat Note Other Other
Opernting  |(A i Total Operating | (Administr Total
1] ative)
[Salaries. wages and bonus ALw - S99 3T40 - 37 din
(Contribution 1o provident and other funds i - 544 7 - Ia¥
Forcign scrvice contnbution - - - = = -
Retieemont Benefits 602 - 602 333 - 3
Stall Welfare [N i 2 . -
1 Total | 6313 - [EXE 44,46 = TR
17 Finance Cost (Rs. in Lucs)
= For the period ended For the year endei|
Partic s
Afficulary ool e 315t March mzl 315t March 2021
Interest Expense (Loan from IRCON) 20RO 1 80068
Onher Barrowing Cost - =
Imerest on Bank Loam PNB) 1449807 (74,88
Bank Guarantes & Other Charpes L% 139 84
Intcrest cost on mobilisation advance from * 9733
clients
Less -lnterest mcome earned on mobilisation . - -6 7 3663
advances
Inwerest On TDS T
Total 2,708.78 2,706,009
200 Depreciation, amortization and impairment
(Rs. in Lacs)
3 For the perivd ended| For the year ended|
Rertontire s ] 315t March 2022 315t March 2021
Property. Plant and cquipmeni 04 013
Total 013




IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U43500DLI01TGOI3I17400
Notes to the Financial Statements for the vear ended 3151 March 2022

21

Earnings Per Share
Disclosure as per Ind AS 33 “Earmings per share’

Basic EPS 15 caleulsed by diiding the profit for the vear atnibutable o equity holders by 1he weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear

Diluted EPS 15 caleulated by dividing the profit for the period atinibutable to the equity holders after considenng the effect of dilution by weighted average number of equity shares
oumstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive poteniial equity shares o equity shares

(i) Basic and diluted earnings per share (in Rs,)

Particulars Note For the period ended 31st For the year ended 315t
March 2022 March 2021
Profit anributable 1o Equity holders (Rs in lacs) {u) 386,67 fd 74
Weghted average number of equity shares for Basic and Diluted EPS (i) 167784137 164050000
Earmings per share (Basic) 035 0.04
Earrings per share (Diluted) 0.35 0.0:4
Face value per share 1000 1000
{ii} Profit attributable to equity shareholders fused as numerator) (Rs. in lacs)
|Particulars For the period ended 31st For the year ended 31st
March 2022 March 2021
Prafu for the vear a5 per Stiement of Profit and Loss 38667 6 74
Profit attributable to Equity holders of the company used for ¢« u EPS: 58667 64,74
(i) Weighted average number of equity shares (used ns denominator) (Nos.)
Particulars For the period ended 315t For the year ended 3 1st
March 2022 March 2021
Opening balance of 1ssued equity shares R - 164030000 16,40.50,000
Equity shares 1ssued during the year 3734137 -
‘Weighted average number of equity shares for computing Basic EPS 167784137 16,40.50,000
Dilution Effect:
Add Weighted average bers of potential equity shares outstanding during the year
Weighted average number of equity shares for computing Diluted EPS 167784137 16,40.50,000

NEW DE

FRN-080361
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CIN- U4SS00DL201TG 01317401
Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2022

Related Party Disclosures

Disclosure as per Ind AS 24 Relaed Panty Disclosures” are as under:

IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED

a)  List of Related Parties

(i) Holding company
Ircon Internatonal Limited

(i) Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Name Designation
Mr. Ashok Kumar Goval (w.e.f 11th Mav 2017) Directors from IRCON
Mr Surapit Dutta (w.e.I'5th Sep, 2019 to 31st March, 2022) Directors from IRCON
Mr Shyam Lal Gupta (w el Ist November, 2019 to 13th May, 2021) Directors from IRCON
Yopesh Kumar Mishra (w.¢.f 13th May, 2021 to [st october 2021) Directors from IRCON
Masood Ahmed (we.f 2nd August, 2021) Directors from IRCON
Mugunthan Boju Gowda (w e f 15t April, 2022) Directors from IRCON
Parag Verma (w.e [ 29th December, 2021) Directors from IRCON
Ritu Arora (w e £ 13th May, 2021) Directors from IRCON
Mr Nagangouwda Hanumanthgouda Patil (w.e I 18th July, 2018) Chief Executive Officer
Ms Kratika Gupta (w et 19th August 2020 1o 1t July, 2021) Chief Financial Otficer
Mr Mahadeb Mandal (w.e I st July, 2021) Chiel Financial Officer
Ms. Pooja Rastogi (w.c.f Ist April. 2019 to 31st March. 2022) Company Secretary

b) Transactions with other related parties are as follows:

(Rs. in Lacs)

Nature of transaction Name of related party

Nature of relationship

For the period ended
31st March 2022

For the period ended
31st March 2021

1) Reimbursement expenses
2) Works Contract
3) Rent Expense (inclusive of GST}

4) Interest on Loan .
Ircon International

5) Imerest On Mobilization Advance- Income Limited
6) [nvestment in Equity Shares
7) CQuast Equity

8) Loans

9) Other payables

Helding Company

16.26
50735
297
208.93
895 .00
1,386.00
1,230.00

3.612.41

8.396.00
5.656.61

¢} Quistanding balances with the related parties are as follows:

Nature of transaction Name of related party

Nature of relationship

As at 31st March 2022

As at 31st March 2021

Ircon International

Balance Pavable as on reporting date e
Limited

Holdmg Company

3,056.61

(d)  Remuneration to Key management personnel are as under: (Rs. in Lacs)

S.No Particulars During the Period During the Period

f ) upto 31-3-2022 upto 31-03-2021
1 |Short term emplovee benefits 51.99 17.46
2 |Post emploviment benefits 504 367
3 |Sitting fee - =
4 |Other long-term emplovee benefits 6.02 333
5 |Staff Welfare 0.08

TOTAL 63.13 44.46

(e) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

(1) Transactions with related parties are made on wrms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.




IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL2017GOI317401
Notes to the Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022

23 Service Concession Arrangements
Public to privale service concession arrangements are recorded in accordance with Appendix "C"- Service Concession Arrangements
{Ind AS-115). Appendix "C" is applicable if:

a)  The Grantor controls or regulates which services the operator should provide with the infrastructure, to whom it must provide
them. and at what price: and

b) The Grantor controls- through ownership. beneficial entitlement. or otherwise- any significant residual interest in the
infrastructure at the end of the term of the arrangement.

[T both of the above conditions are met simultaneously. a financial asset is recognized to the extent that the operator has an
unconditional contractual right to receive cash or other financial asset from or at the discretion of the Grantor for the service.

These financial assets are initially recognized at cost, which is understood as the fair value of the service provided plus other direct
costs directly attributable to the operation. They are then stated at amortized cost at the end of each financial year,

Ircon Davanagere Haveri Highway Limited (IDHHL) has entered into service concession arrangement with National Highway
Authority of India (NHAI) dated 19-06-2017. in terms of which NHAI (the grantor) has authorized the company for development,
maintenance and management of National Highway No. 48 (Old NH-4) including the section from Km 260.00 to Km 338923
(approx. 78.923 Km) on Davanagere - Haveri Section of National Highway No. 48 (Old NH-4) in the State of Karnataka by six-laning
thereof on design, build. finance, operate and transfer basis . In terms of the said agreement IDHHL has an obligation to complete
construction of the project of Six laning of Davanagere Haveri section and to keep the project assets in proper working condition
including all projects assets whose lives have expired. The Project is under Annuity pattern.

The Concession period shall be 15 years commencing from the appointed date. At the end of the concession period, the assets will be
transferred back to National Highway Authority of India (NHAT).

In case of material breach in terms of agreement the NHAI and lrconDHHL have right to terminate the agreement if they are not able
1o cure the event ol default in accordance with such agreement.

Company has recognized financial asset of Rs.48.366.43 Lakhs under service concession agreement upto the period ended 3 1st March
2022 after taking into account the receivables due from NHAL on completion of milestone as per terms of the contract. The company
has recognised revenue of Rs 797.76 Lacs for the period ended on 31st March 2022 on construction of Road under SCA and
Operation Revenue as per Ind AS - 113 related to "Revenue from Customers". The company has recognized receivable under service
concession arrangement and shown under Other Financial current Assets which it will receive as per terms of the contract based on
the completion of milestone, as on 3 1st March 2022, Company has received Provisional Completion certificate with effect from May
28.2021.

Disclosure in terms of Appendix D of Ind AS 115
In terms of the disclosure required in Appendix D in Ind AS -115 Revenue from Customers, as notified in the companies (Indian
Accounting Standard) rules 2016, the amount considered in the financial statements up to the balance sheet date are as follows:-

(Rs. in Lacs)

For the year] For the year
Particulars ended 31st|] ended 31st

March, 2022 March, 2021
Contract Revenue Recognized 797.76 19.306.31
Aggregate amount of cost incurred 1.316.28 19.306.31
Amount of advance received from Client - -
Amount of retention by Client - -
Profit/( Loss) recognised during the period for exchange of construction
service for a financial asset (318:32) )
Gross amount due from Client lTor Contract Works 3.446.88 4,182.91
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IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- LHESMODL 201 TGO 13 7400

Nutes do the Financial stwicments fur the vear ended 315t March 2022

A, Fair Value Messurements

) Financial instruments by cutegory

[Parti s at J1st March 2022

Asat 315t March 2021
F T

FVIPL (RN} Amurtised Cost FVIPL TOCT Amartiseil Cosg

Financial Assets
(1] Imestments
(it Loans
(i) Other Financial Assets 1) A 3

Slk A6 A
Financial Liabilitics
(1) Borrow inigs 3288 68 EREVE B
(i) Other Financeal Lighilitics 11603 1.670.30

{0 ITIT50% |

b Falr vahee hierarehy

Financiol asseis and Gnancinl labitives are measured a fair value i these Gnancial statement and are grouped into three kevels of a fair value hierarchy . The three Levels are defingd based on the obsenabiliny: of significam

wiputs Lo the measurement. as follows

Level 1° Quated prices (wnadjusied ) in aciive markes for identical asscts or liabilities

Level 2 Inpus oiher than quoted poces imeluded withm Level | thorare observable for the asset or habiliy, enher direetly or indirecily
Level 3 Uinobservalile inputs for the asset or Babilit

©)The earrving values and fmr values of financial instruments by eategonies as ot 31 March, 2022 ore as follows

[Rs. in Lacs)

3 1 Fair Value
Fan(culny Carrying Valug| Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Proficand Loess (FYTPLY
Invesiment in Mutual Funds - - - -
Total
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
1) Invesiments = = - -
i) Loans % ™ P 2
(11} Cther Finaneinl Assets 017123 - - 17123
Total SL1T1.28 = = SAT12E
Partivulars Kiie Valnd
Carrving Valug Level 1 Level 2 Leved 3
Financial Liabilitics at Amortized Cost
(1} Boprowmgs 3B, 288 0l - - I 2HR 06
(i1} Cither Financial Liabilinies 116038 - - 11605
M 3840470 - - JEA404.T0
b The carrving values and [aw values of linancial mstruments by categories as a1 31 March, 2021 are as follows.
iy L A
. Fair Value
Particelary Carrying Value Level 1 Lovel 2 Tovel 3
2l Assets ot Fair Valoe Theough Profit and Loss 'FYTPL")
Investment m Mutal Funds - - -
Total
Financinl Assets ot Amorticed Cost
(1} Investmenis . - - -
Investmens in Tax Free Bonds - - -
(1) Loans - - - -
it Other Firnancial Assets R (I - - 40 406,000
LEET i Ak, 03 - - BRI LXIX]
Particulars | Fair Vohue
Carrying Value| Level | Level 2 Level 3
Fimancial Liabilitics at Amortized Cost
(1) Bomow ings 357508 - - Bk N R
i) Orther Financsal Liabilivies 1.676.30 - - 167630
Tutal JTAIFAS - - JTAEAS

The managemcnt assessed that cash and cash cquivalents, trade recenables. trade payables and other current inancial liabliies approximate their carm g amounts largeh due to the shan-tcm

trioturities of these insirumcats.

The Fair «alue of the lnancial assels and Babilivies is inehuded at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a carrent trans setion hetw cen willing parties The following methods and assumptions were used 10

cstimate the fmr valoes

1) The fair value of imestments in mutual fund units s based on the Net Asset Value ('NAY b as stated by the issucrs of these mutwal fund units in the published statemcnts as at Balance Sheet date. NAV represents the

price at which the ssuer will issue further units of mutial fund and the price o which issuers will redecm such unis fram the investors

fily Long werm sariable rate borrow i
matenally differeot from their cam ing anoun)

* During the financinl year 202122 and 202021, there were no transfers between Level L Level 2 and Level 3 far value measurements.
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TRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U4ESIHDL 2 TGO 7401
MNutes to the Financial statements Tor the vear ended 31st March 2002

B, Financial Risk Management
The Compam 's prncipal financi
opersions. The Company's actisdies expose o 4o some of the finoncial risks: market risk, credin cish and louidity risk

a) Market Risk
Marke nisk is the risk that the T valve of future cash lows of 3 fmancial mstrwments will Tuciuate becavse of changes i market prsces, Market nisk compses Foreign currency nisk and Interest rate risk. Financial
matruments alfocted by market nsk mcludes borrowines. irade recen ables. trade pasable and ather non dern ative linancial instrumenis

Tabilities borrow ing and other financial labilitics. The Compans s prncipal nancial assets include cagh and cash equivalents and reconcrable from NHALthat deny e direeth from its

(i} Interest Rate Risk
Intercsl rate visk i the risk thal the far v ol of future cash Mows of a fnancil mstruments will lectwate becase of change m markotn mierest rate. The compam manages s micrest sk m sccordance with the
companies policies and risk ohjeetne. Financial nstruments affocted by interest rate sk includes deposits with banks Intcrest rate risk on these fimancial instruments are vers low as interest rate 15 ficed for the penod
of finaneial instrumenis
b) Crodin Risk
The Compam = eustomer i3 NHAL under Minstry of Rond Transpon and Highwms. Accordingly, the Company s customer aredit risk is bow. The Compans “s average projeet execution ciele i oround 24 to 36 months.
Cicneral payment terms mchide mobidisation adyvance, monthly progress pasments with a credit pened ranging frem 43 (o 60 dovs and cenain retention mones 10 be released a1 the end of the project. In seme epses retentions
are substituted with hank | corporate guarantees. The Compam has a detaibed revwew mechansm of overdue customer recervables at sanwons levels within arganisation to ensure proper altention ad Tocus for realisstion

Trade and other receivuble
The Campam's exposure Lo credit risk s mfucnecd mamiy by the mdvosdual chwactensics of cach customer. The demosraphics of the customer. meluding the defull nsk of the mdustny and counirs m which the customer

operales, also has an infl on eredil nsh 1

Exposure to Credit Risk

Particulars
Financiul Assers for which sllowance is measured nsing Lifetime Expected Credin Losses (LECL)

F1-113-2023 F1-413-2021

Non Current Loans

Oither Non Corrent Financial Agecis
Current [nvesiments

Cash and Cash Equivalenis

(Other Bank Balances

Ciirrent Loans

Other Carrent Fimancinl Assets

4599652 3X50K 27
StE AT L3407
240 il NIRRT

LI TRIT T

Financial Assets for which allin is mensured using Simplificd Approach

T'rade Recenables 30 ER 418291

Controct Asscls

fit) Prowision for expected oredin lisses

Mompairmeit boss has been recounised duning Lthe reporting pened

giie) Reconciliation of impairment loss proyisions

1-N3-2022 31-4013-2021

Purticulurs
(Opening Allovwainces
Impasrment loss recognised durmg the penod

Amount writken-ofT during the period
LE)

o significant changes in hinigues or I were made during (he reparting period  Durmg the sear. the Company has recognised loss allowance of Rs. Ni Lakhs (31 March. 2021 - Rs Nil Lakhs |

ity risk

The Company manages hiquidine nsk by mainmaming suflicient cash and marketable sccuritics and by having access to funding through an adequate amount of committed credit lines The treasury depaniment regulnrh
monitors the position of Cash and Cash Equivalents vis-3-us projeciions. Assessment of maturity profiles of Gnancial assets and faancial Babalines and maintenance of Balance Sheet liquidin ratios are considered while
reviewing the liquidity position

The Compans s i estnent polies and strateys are focused on preseraiion of capital and supporting 1he Compan s liquidity requirements The senior Manogenient of the Company oversecs its investment stralegy and
achicre its mwestment objectines. The poliey requires im estments generall Lo be imesiment wrade, with the priman obyective of mnimising the potential risk of prineipal loss.

The table below providcs details ling the signify financial linbilitics as a1 31 March 2022 and 31 March 202
(Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars As an 31 March, 2022
Lcss than | 1-2 years "
; 2 Years anid alive
Year
Bomowmgs (LR X 25020 EUXHTO]
Trade pax ables 3atrn - -
Dther finaneial habilities 11605 - &
[Particutars As on 31 March, 2021
= 1-2 ve
l."m L il 1 Yewrs und ahove
Year
Bormowings 1 484 1 R84 00 M315105
Trade paables 5 086.6]
Onher financial liabilitics 1.676.30
d} Excessive risk concentration
Concentrations anse when a number of counterpartics are engaged i similar business activities, or aclis ities in the som graphical region. or have features that would couse thewr ability 10 meet contraciual

abligations to be similarly affecied by changes in ecanemic. political or other conditions. Concentrations indsegjc the relative sensitnity of the Company s per to derel aflcctmg lar mdusin.

e\ AN
In order 1o avard excessive concenirations of nsk, the Compan s palicics and proce ("Qp}fnﬂc ip@ﬁc L}"lﬂ focus on the collad fied portfoho. |d ] oferedit nisks are comrelled
< Ay

and mannged pecordimghy
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TRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- V4EE0DL 201 TGO 401
Nutes te the Financial statements Tor the vear ended 31st March 2022

The followmg table gives details in respect of resemws generated from top live prajects

Particulars Faor the ycar ended
31-0J-2022 31-03-2021
Revenue from top § Projgets T97.70 19,306.31
97,70 19,306.31

. Capital Manspement
The Company obiectine to manage us capial in a manner 1o ensure and safeguard (heir abilis 10 contnue 03 o going concemn so that the Company. can contmig 10 provide masimum retums to sharchobders and benelil 1o other

stakcholders. The Compans has pard divided s per the gudelines ssued by D ul i and Pubhic Asset Managerment (DIPAM) as folkows -

v idlemds :- (Rs.in Lacs)

Particulars 31-Mar-22 d1-Mar-21
fi ond the ds of the financial covenants

Funther, (he Compam: manages its capital structure to make adjustments in light of changes in
Company has taken aterm loan during the FY 2021-22 Rs 1230 00 Laes i Previous Year Rs 2646 Lacs) from its halding company 10 finance ils project
Compamy has (sken a term loan durimg the FY 202022 Rs 3203.6% Lacs ( Previous Year Rs 33093 |3 Locs) from Punjab National Bank (o finance s project

{Rs. in Lacs)

Deht Equity Ratio -

Particulirs .iI-)lur—Z!l 31-Muar-21
Borrowmgs (Note No 11 3H. 28805 3573915
| Long Term Debt 34,288.65 35,730.15
Equits (Nate No, V) 17 3H0. 00 16,4005 ity
Oiiher Equits (MNote No. 1) 239223 A5G
Total Equity 19,692,323 1652456
[Debt Equity Ratio 1.%4 112

,-/{\.—".\ﬂ ver;
Q!(_}l.
)
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IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U45500DL2017GOI1317401
Notes to the Financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022

Contingent liabilitics and Contingent Assels:
(1) Contingent Liabilities:

(a) Claims against the company not acknowledge as debt: Rs. NIL (Previous Year NIL),
{b) Guarantees excluding financial guarantee:Nil (Previous Year Rs Nil Lacs)

(II) Contingent Assets: Rs. NIL (Previous Year NIL).

1. Commitments:

a)Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and other is Nil(Previous year Nil)

b) Other Commitments:26415.99 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs, 26682.60 Lacs)

1. Segment Reporting:

(i) General Information

Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprise for which discrete financial information is available which is being evaluated
regularly by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) in deciding how to allocate resources and assessing performance. The Board of
Directors of the Company 1s the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The Company is engaged in the business of infrastructure
development in the state of Maharashtra and the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) menitors the operating results of the business as a
single segment, hence no separate segment needs to be disclosed in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108.

(ii) Information about geographical information
As the Company operales in a single geographical segment i.e, India hence no separate geographical segment is disclosed.

(iii) Information about major customer
Revenue of Rs, 797.76 Lakhs are derived from a single customer i.e. NHAI which is more than 10% of the Company’s total revenue.

111, Interest in other Entities: Rs, NIL (Previous Year NIL).
.Disclosure regarding Leases:
(a) Company as a Lessee

The Company has no leasing arrangement which are non-cancellable in nature. Accordingly, no right of use assets and lease liabilities have
been recognised by the Company.

The Company has taken Office on lease with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Company applies the ‘short-term lease’ recognition
exemptions for such leases.

The following are the amounts recognised in Statement of profit and loss: (Rs. in Lacs)
Particulars For the periﬂd-l For the period
ended ended|

31st March 2022| 31st March 2021

Expense relating to short-term leases (Refer Note 17) 2.97 2.73

(a) Company as a Lessor

Company has no leasing arrangement as a lessor.
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MNotes b the Financial statements for the peeinl cniled 310 March 2022

I womplaaince of Td As S “Bnapatmaent of Aasets”. e Congsam s nes ioved the issets o searsened oo medscaton of rmpamsent bovs i s per the sceounting podies of the Campany As There 1ome smdication of

i [N b T Tes Beeny L ahuring The year

Employee Benefils

The Peran wiarking for Ieen Diasvanager Faven Haghway 1 imetod are posted om nemmmetion sccondmont bases fiom lroon Intermational | e (§Boddg Companmos The proveaon ber retirement benetit of nomnated smploses

i frms aof Trd AS<19 0 baoug macke b its holabionge ooty a9 per accourmg policy

Revenae Mrvm conbract with custumers us per Inid AS-115

Prewrdent B comtntstaom of the conplovess on menmation secondment hos beon rogulasly deposted Iy e boldimg company with s PF

Disagaregation of Revenue
Sl il b low 14 e disagrcgataen of e Compam s rovemie from contticts will cisdoners mio eperatmg segrment o by of prodicd or senoces
Type of For the year ended March 31, 2022
Product ar Revenue as per Ind AS 115 Methed far measuring performance obligation Other Revenue Total as per Statement of Profit and Loss
Services
Domestic]  Foreign) Total Tnput Methed) Output Method

L milvavs - | -] = = . =
1 lighuas T T -] 19176 TUTTh - =] TOT.7%
Edectno| - o - - - - -

TOL.T6 - T797.76 J97.76 - - T97.76

Chat b e fidal revenie soogussed sber T A% 115 s the vear, By ™97 76 Lics s revogised vven o pesod of i and Bs R Laos secogiised poit i s

Tetal For the year ended March 31, 2021

Revenue as per Ind AS 115 mcasurin rmance ohligatin Oither Revenue Total as per Statement of Profit and Loss

Dumestic]  Fureign) To Tnput Methan] Output Method|
Hailwars = ] " = . ] -
Highway (DR B EEET [CETZET] - - 19,306.31
Clectrwal - A | F . i =
JESTII T - - - - -1 -] -
{hers = - - = - -
Tufal 19 1 31 & 19,306 31 19,306 31 - - 19,306,531
£t of Lt 1] pesenitic tecogntsed under Ind A% 115 during the vear. Hs 14 3100 31 laes o rocogrsed oner o pened o e and Rs Nl bacs reoognasec pom m fme
Centract halanees
Particulars Asal 315t Ma Asa
2022 3 rch, 2021

Trande Recuisabbes (Nole (1 3440 KR 4.182 91
L umtiict Assits (Moge 4 X ) 4K WG 43 46379 32

[ omtret Laabalijes iMote |43

Trunde revets ables are dotiemibercst b and e aistemer profile i3 Natosal Highmay Autherit of India. The Conmpany s average project evecilivn evele v aromd 24 36 mamtha oneral pasment semms melide
bt b e, meonthily progress pavirenis with o credin pered renging from 45 16 (0 days

IEs e s IIC TN eualiL el

o mA i omntmel dssst | noeladsifTad otk peces ables can stistaction of the conditus attachad e f

Mavement iy caniract halances during the vear

il Assets ne rovopedsed v the paoned i ahoch seces are perimmed i epresent the Compam’s mght te consideratiom in exchange lor goods o savioes tansonal to e castomer 1 ischibes bakinces due from
a5t whe Lhe Comganmy moveh o pas merits (Tom customers a3 per berms af the coircts et er the revei
e serv e which o sacessary b achieye the bllog nabestom:

15 pecogrinsed vver e ponaod onder nipat methisd Ay amesol pres sl

Particulars As i 3ist March, Asat

2022 15t March, 2021
Lonlro] asvet at the ¢ of |l vean 16.374 32 228K f0
Conlriet assed an e e o the tear AR A6 41 374 32
MNet Increasel| e rease) 198711 A0, T2

Fust the vear
Fur the e

2 1-22, there has been et meroase by K5 1987 | Tacs a3 compared to kst ve
=21 (hete has boen ncl iocrcase I Bs J0EE 72 Lacs as comparead i Bst vear e e o mecogtion of iesene bosed o gt method wheress Wil for sork done are certifiad used o vomtgact conditnom

e el fu povaemition o weverne based om gl method whe

e ballbs fug work dbone ane vertifiad hased oneomtraet comdinm

Contrast Habalities relinng 1o corsinxtion comrcts are balaress due 1o cibormers. these anse when a parbicudar miledone pavment exvonds The revene reosgmsed o date vnder The mp method and sdvance received i g

term eunstrudon cortraets The amounl of Advance recervad gets adpustad over the

Maovement in contract balances during the vear

bt pernnl as and when mnoscim s e o he customes

As at
3ist March, 2022

As i
315t March, 2021

T AT

-204250
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TRCOMN DAY ANAGERE HAVERI HIGHW AY LIMITED
CIN- L4A5DLIN TGO T400
Notes 1o the Financial statements far the period endid 3151 March 2022

Setoul below ks the ameunt of revenbe reemgnised from:

Particalars As ail As i
315t March, 2022 31t March, 2021
A k) o coieact lisblaties ) e bogaimimg of the s e = -
Paatomn s obligaiwn scatisfied m pees s 1ears = Z
Cont tw isbtain the contract
Arrwnt revogmasd as asset as ol 2o March, 2022 15 Rs Nl oA a1 3 051 Moreh, 2021 s Naly
Armwtanl of amoetisadim rocngginisal on e stibemert of paasdit ded loss dhong e v s Ba Nl FY 02021 Ky Ny
Perfermance obligation
[rifisrmvastion about thie Compans s perfomiance are swmmmuriied hdow
Tl st ion prwe albatal 1o e tomamig | hligateons e o pastsal v vt eliody s at 31 Mar ane s follows
Particulury As atl As anl
31t March, 2012 Jist March, 2021
Withm one vear %117 6082 1)
[ Mlowe Thim one vear 1o 2 vears 2 -
Mowe than 2 years 23 %62 6l -
Tutal 641599 2o.642. G0
* Thee el dvse oo abwn e dows b iclide varslibe considenation which s omsmeal
Infarmatien in respect of ducs b0 Micrs and Small Enterprises as roquired by Micro, Small aml Molivm Enterprives Bevelopment Act, 2006 (MSMED Aci)
T —
S.No Particulurs As at 3t March, 2022 As ut 31st March, 2011
The prem sl winotind and the nieres due thewon sensarmng unpaid o Sappler 35 20
1 Frimeipal amnt dise fo miern ad seal enlerposes - -
Lttt oo oo © = =
The aivwoti of inkeresd pasd by the biner o temes of Sectian 1ol the MSMED Act + =
2 200 along wth e ameamnts of e pavmicont mack o Bie supphicr bevond e appomted
ki g cauh accosmting et
The armoumt of mierest Jue and payable for the perid of delay 1n nuking payment = ~
i et b Boenn posd bt Devond the appessted day dsirmig the veark Tt wathio adkdmg|
the mtcrest sprifien] under the MSAMED Aer 20010
1 T armemt of mitcret awericd and remainamng unpsid 00 the ond of Gch aconmting vear - El
The aptwmmt of Rarther inverest rerisnmnng o mmd pavaide even i Use susceeding wears, - =
R ] <ok ot when e interes! dued e phovie ane sctualb i 10 the sl eniterprse
* ot fhe tarpris o disall e ance as 2 deshietilile e perditire mider Setivm 23 of the
IS At T00p:
Biscls purant to in Schedube T of the Companies Act 2003

Thee MECA b ade ot

1 |

A paer Lhe amd 4

1 a1, atwd b i

ane made L ey

ol T s

cation diled 24th Morch 262 1 has amerded Schedule o the Companses Act 26003 i nespect of et i disclosunes wheh ane applicable from [t Apnt 20210 The Compant has meeorponted the ehunges
1 the far:

Tl Congary has i trmnsactions will comparies anack off wsber secion 245 o e Uempames Aot 2005 or Soction 360 of Cenipaimes At 1956 dunng the peno]

tu) T onrigarny faas ol il v ey et i Crvplis Coarrenes oe Yartual Cusrency. darngs the pernsd
[ The Comtipiun o ot Jave sy Breaam propermy. when an proceedig has oo instiated op pesding seimet the conpass e ol am Betianu propat
[l Ihe Conpany do net have any prior pored crmrs S0 e dhsclosed sparlely m statement of dianges 1 coqmiy
i Thee L. o st e g cluarges o0 sabvalaetien whuch o vt s D eprtored 1t RO Bevond the sttty persd
i Flse Congpienn v st adsaneed or loaned or mivestal Mamds (0 s other personi =1 or entiiyisest meloding fonsign anities (b ki with the dirige that the | deary shall
far shrectly o hroct 1 lealor wvest i other perssis or cotitees whentified m om manser whotsoever b or on Tsehalf ol e company (1 mote Bencicinmes on
oy g acde oot sevoniby o thie [k o ur on beball ol the Dltunate Beodieunes
iy} Thir Connpaim huve ool reovved e fand Gy pessoniss o anun e including Foreign aistes (Funding Pats s with the understonsing O hether recondad s wonimg o vihsoa s that te Company shall
Fin'y chirestly or indhiroct v dond o snvest i other persm or ciibibics wentilied m om mannes whatsocver by oron behall ol the Punding Pary (0 Homate Heneloane o
b proside wm gimiantee. scomnity o the Tike on behalUol the Flismasie Benelicnres
e Ml Cimpaany dhoes vt has e any Joans and sadvances o the vatwre of leems 1o promoters, divectors, KMP and otbier reluted panie
i) Fhe Company does nol bave any ranssctian which is not recorded 1 the Dok oF secatus that hes been subsequenty surmederad or disclised o wseome durmng the year a5 pan of e on gaing 135 Dssessmens
wnsder the Ineorme Tas Act, 196 1 st as, wearch o sunvey or ame other relovms prosisions of the Ineome Tas Aet 19 1)
[£3] T Conruany has et Deen dechinal as willud delanlier b o banboor finscial iastiuion o gotenuma of o gosenument aubionts
(1) T Cormpany s complied with the mamber of Tavers prosen el wider the Comspanies Ao 2015
(utih T firThonsang acconntimg rasis arc disclised
Parthculars Numerator Denaminutor March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 %o change Reason for change mure than 15%
LCurzent b Cwpenl Asscls Current Lihalities 21 el (ERT K MNA
Dbty (i Twial Detn Sharetiolder’s Equin 1 212 [R4TH MNA
el serviee covirage | Famngs for debi serviee = Net paofit | Dbl senave = Interest & 1 ose o G0 [RTT RN [Loan Repand Lo leom -
ratin et taves + Noviscnh opaatmg | Pasments + Praneipal Repayments
ey
Huhurm om eyuity 1t et Profins atber s = Prefiremee Averige Shareholuder™s Faputy a3 froer 1733 42% (Db bo Inoren s an The protil m Current year
Drsadensd
[risantormy (umoher run Lot of goods sold Average Inventors A
Trimke recervabies fummoer | Net cralit sakes = Ciss oot <ales - Avere Vi Revervable 2] 770 47 314 D s Dot o 1he Constroction Revense m e
b salies e Ul Lear
Trode payable mmever | Nel enedin purchuses = Gross aedit Mvwrage Trade Povables il R P 1o Acrease m Comstrogtion Cost
i purchuses - pareha s retim
Mot capital tmmever ruiv | Net sales = Total safies - aales retum IWﬂanql cupifal = Crirmont assetd — (L] 1.5% 508 | e to Deen aem the Current Assels aned Current
Current lanbalatics Frabaliiy an the Curvent inancial vear
et proit szt Nt Profis et sales = Tolal sales - sales 074 (00 | 21830 44| Due to Increase m the profil m Cument vear
relum
Retur om capatal Vammngs befiore wierest and taxes | Capetal hwed = Tungihle Met a7 (IS 11 4% NA
emphoed Wharth + Tagal e + Defiormal
Tax Lialnhey
Retin onwvestment | ulereat (Finanee Income) Tvestment W] 129547 e to Inerense n fimance Ineome
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TRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED
CIN- U4550801.201 TGO 17400
Notes to the Financlal statements far the period ended 31a1 March 2022

A3 Diselosure s per Ind AS 21 *The Effects of Changes In Foreign Exchange Rutes”
The sarsounil hanjie difle inet] e to th of profit and loss ks Nil

M Corpurute Sueks| Hesponsibitity
The Company is not cavered under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and no CSR experditure has been incurred during the period

as Disclosure pursuant to sectbon 186 of the Companles Aci 2013
There are v Ipans given, investments made and guarstoe are made by the Company during the period.

36 Covid -19 Disclosure
The Company has considered the possible effects that may rosult from Covid-19 in the preparation of (s finncial resuls incluing the reeoverability of carrying amounts of financial and non-financial asses. In developing the
asstmptions relating fo e possibile futire ancertaintics in the global ceonante conditions because of Covid-19, the Company hits used internal and extemal sources of infonmation and expects that the carrying amount of the
assels will be recovered
The actual impact of this gliba] health pandemic may be different from (hat which hus beon ssfinted, as the Covid- 19 situstion evobves in Indis and globally. However, the Company will continue 1o closely monitor mmy
maserial changes o funre econamic conditions.

37 Hecenl pranouncement
Ministry of Corporate AfTairs (“MCA™) nofifies new standands or amendimenis 10 the existing siandands under C ies {Indian A i fards) Rules a5 issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA smended
the Companies (Indian Accourting Standards) Amendinent Rules, 2022, as below,
Lind AS 16 - Property Plant and equipment - The amendment clorifies that excess of net sale procecds of items produced over the cost of testing, if any, shall not i recognised in the profit or loss but deducted from the dircetly
attribitable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant, and equipment. The effective date for adoption of this smendiment is anmual periods beginning on or after April |, 2022, The Crompany hias evalunted the
wanendment aad there is no impact on its financial sistements
LInd AS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabiliies wsd Contingent Assets — The amendment speeifies that the *cost of flfilling” a contrmct campriscs the ‘costs that relate directly o the contracs”. Costs that relace dircctly o &
enntrect can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct Tabour, materials) or an allocation of pihier costs thal relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allcation of the
deprecintion charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract). The effoctive date for adoption of this wmendiment is amal periods beginnivg on or afier April 1, 2022, although carly adoption |s
permitted. The Company hes evalunted the nmendiment sl the inpied 1s not expected to be matcrial
Alnd AS | 05-Financial Instrument-Fess in the 10 per cent’ test for derecognition of financial labilies
The amendment larifics th foes fhat an entity ineludes when assessing whether the werms of i new or modified financial lability are substanteally different from the termd of the oniginal financial labilivy, These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrawer and the lender, including fees paid or received by cither the berrower or lender on the other's behialt.
An entity applies the amendment (6 financial |iahilities that are modificd or exchanged on or afler he beginning of the anaual reporting period i which e entivy first applies the anerdment.

36 Ouher disclosures
{i} The Campany has & system ol ubinining periodic confitmation of balanges from banks ond other parties.
(i} n the opinion of the management, the valie of assets ot realisation in the ordinary course of business, will not be less thin the value st wiich these nre stated in the Halunes Shest.
(i) Figures rounded ofl i the nearest rupees in Lakh,

kil Ciatain prior pesiods amounss have buen neclassified for consistency with the current period presentations. Thess reclessifivations have no effect on the reparted results of operations. Also, previous year figures are shovm under
bracket () to differentiato from current year figures

As per our Report of even date attached Far and on behalf of Board of Di

-
Mugiiithan Boju s
Pine

DIN-08517013

For Singhal Sunil & Asociaf
ed Accouniants
[MIN-T900§553

—
cep Baisoya
€ Sunil Signhal a il
Pariner Chiel Executive Dificer Chiel Financial O ficer Company Secretary
M. No. DB6S04
Place : New Delhi

Date: 17405-2022
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2022

The preparation of financial statements of IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY
LIMITED for the year ended 31 March 2022 in accordance with the financial reporting framework
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
The Statutory Auditor appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139

(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on the financial statements under Section 143 of

the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under
Section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide their Revised Audit Report |
dated 19 July 2022 which supersedes their earlier Audit Report dated 17 May 2022.

L, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary
audit of the financial statements of IRCON DAVANAGERE HAVERI HIGHWAY LIMITED for
the year ended 31 March 2022 under Section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has been
carried out independently without access to the working papers of the Statutory Auditor and is limited
primarily to inquiries of the Statutory Auditor and Company personnel and a selective examination
of some of the accounting records.

In view of the revision made in the Statutory Auditor’s report, to give effect to some of my
audit observations raised during supplementary audit, I have no further comments to offer upon or

supplement to the Statutory Auditors’ report under Section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Uiinins )

Place: New Delhi Vikram D. Murugaraj
Dated: 01.08.2022 Principal Director of Audit
Railway Commercial, New Delhi
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